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Notice Of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that an Annual General Meeting of Proven
Investments Limited will be held at 20 Micoud Street, Castries, St. Lucia,
on 13 September 2013 at 10:00 a.m. to consider and, if thought fit, pass

the following resolutions:

1 To receive the Audited Group Accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2013 and
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
circulated herewith

Resolution No. 1 “THAT the Audited Group
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013
and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
circulated with the Notice convening the

meeting be and are hereby adopted.”

To ratify interim dividends and declare
" them final

Resolution No. 2 “THAT the interim dividends
paid on 2 July 2012, 31 August 2012,
7 December 2012 and 6 March 2013, be and
they are hereby declared as final and no further
dividend be paid in respect of the year under

review.”

To appoint Auditors and authorize the
* Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Auditors

Resolution No. 3 “THAT KPMG Eastern
Caribbean, having agreed to continue in
office as Auditors for the Company, be hereby
appointed to hold office until the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting at a
remuneration to be fixed by the Directors of

the Company.”

4 To fix the remuneration of the Directors

Resolution No. 4 “THAT the amount shown
in the Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2013 as remuneration of the
Directors for their services as Directors be and
is hereby approved.”

Dated the 13" day of July, 2013

By Order of the Board

Rhory McNamara
Company Secretary

NB: Members are reminded of the provisions of Regulations 37-38 of the Articles of Association of the Company, which provide as follows:

37. Amember may be represented at a meeting of members by a proxy who may speak and vote on behalf of the member.

38. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be produced at the place appointed for the meeting before the time for holding the meeting
at which the person named in such instrument proposes to vote. A corporation may execute a form of proxy under the hand of a duly

authorised officer of such corporation.

The instrument appointing a Proxy must be in writing and a Proxy Form is attached for your convenience.



Company Profile

Proven Investments Limited (“PROVEN™) is incorporated
in St. Lucia as an International Business Company (“IBC”)

pursuant to the International Business Companies Act,
Cap. 12.14 of St. Lucia. Its registered office is located at
McNamara Corporate Services Inc., 20 Micoud Street,

Castries, St. Lucia.

In February 2010, PIL successfully raised
US$20,000,000 in equity capital through its fully
subscribed private placement of ordinary shares
which was one of the largest private or public US
Dollar equity offerings in the history of Jamaica’s
capital market. The Company subsequently
raised approximately US$9.6 million from a rights
issue in August of the same year. The ordinary
sharesinthe Company were listed on the Jamaica
Stock Exchange (“JSE”) in July 2011. This
was also the JSE’s first US Dollar denominated
ordinary share listing.

PIL’s 8% 5-year
Preference Share offer
successfully closed on
December 23, 2011
raising J$1 billion for

the CGompany. The
Preference Shares were
subsequently listed on the

JSE on January 31, 2012.

The primary business of the Company is the holding
of tradable securities for investment purposes, but
the Company is also determined to pursue private
equity opportunities as they arise, provided they
are consistent with the overall aims and objectives
of the Company. To date PIL has closed three
private equity transactions:

PROVEN Wealth Limited: Proven Wealth
Limited (“PWL") is a licensed securities dealer
with the Financial Services Commission, which
has regulatory control over the securities industry
in Jamaica under the Securities Act. The PWL
team is experienced and has managed billions of
dollars of investments, delivered consistent returns
and expert advice over the last twenty years in the
financial services sector. Their know-how spans
asset management, corporate finance, financial
advisory services, merchant banking, stock
brokerage, pension fund management and unit
trust management.

Asset Management Company Limited:
Asset Management Company Limited (“AMCL”)
is a consumer and business financing entity
that is incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica.
They are the owners of the Easy Own and
eZEEas123 brands.
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Launched in October 2006, Easy Own allows
consumers to purchase furniture and major
appliances on hire purchase from participating
vendors. While eZEEas123, anewly added brand,
offers financing for business, personal, corporate
and educational use. This is offered through
AMCL directly as well as through a number of
partner institutions.

PROVEN REIT Limited: PIL is the 85% majority
owner of PROVEN REIT Limited, which was
recently formed as the vehicle for real estate
related investments. In February 2012, the first of
these investments was completed with a property
being purchased through PROVEN Kingsway
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of PROVEN
REIT Limited. The property houses an apartment
complex and currently provides an attractive
level of rental income, with the possibility of
development or resale in the future.

PROVEN invests its capital for the ultimate benefit
of its shareholders, who will share in the returns
of the Company and provides shareholders with:

- above average USS fixed income returns
- international and regional diversification
- atax-efficient investment structure

- an excellent currency hedge

- strong risk management

- arobust corporate governance structure

The assets and operations of PROVEN are
managed by Proven Management Limited
(“PML”),who hasbeenengaged asthe Investment
Manager. The Investment Manager has certain
investment decision making responsibilities, in
accordance with the Investment Policy.

PML is incorporated in Jamaica for the purpose
of managing the investments and operations of
Proven Investments Limited. PML is licensed and
regulated by the FSC as a securities dealer and
holds the 10,000 Manager’s Preference Shares
in PROVEN, which collectively hold 50% of the
voting rights in PROVEN on matters other than
the Investment Manager’s fees (on which each
Manager’s Preference Share carries one vote).

The Investment Management Agreement
between PROVEN and PML provides for
the following compensation for PML as the
Investment Manager:

1. Management Fee

A management fee of 2% per annum of the
average Net Asset Value of PROVEN will be
payable monthly for managing PROVEN's assets
and operations.

2. Performance-based Dividends

The Manager’s Preference shares held by PML
carry the right to a dividend equal to 25% of
PROVEN'’s profits earned in excess of the hurdle
rate, payable quarterly. The hurdle rate is a
percentage return on PROVEN’s average equity
in each financial year, set annually at the 12
Month LIBOR rate prevailing at the beginning of
the financial year plus 200 bps, with a permanent
ceiling of 6%.

PML brings together
one of the most
experienced teams in
the CGaribbean financial
sector, who 1n aggregate
have successtully
managed billions of
dollars of 1nvestments,
delivering consistent
returns and expert
financial advice over
the past two decades.
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The team includes:

Christopher Bicknell - Chairman

Christopher Bicknell is widely regarded as one of
Jamaica’s most successful entrepreneurs and is
currently the Group C.E.O. and Finance Manager
of Tank-Weld Ltd. Mr. Bicknell is a Certified Public
Accountant (CPA).

Garfield Sinclair - Director

Garfield Sinclair is the Country Manager of one of
the region’s largest telecommunications giants,
LIME Jamaica & Cayman. Prior to this Garfield
was the President & Chief Operating Officer of
Dehring Bunting & Golding Limited (‘DB&G”).

Mr.  Sinclair's educational achievements
include the Executive Certificate in Strategy
and Innovation from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology Sloan School of Management,
Executive Development Program at the University
of Pennsylvania (Wharton), California Board of
Accountancy — C.P.A licence (non-practising),
Uniform Certified Public Accounting examination
and a Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration (accounting) from the San Diego
State University.

Christopher Williams - President
Christopher Williams is responsible for
overseeing the operations of PML and providing
strategic direction and leadership towards the
achievement of the organization’s overall goals
and objectives, as set by the Board of Directors.

Mr. Williams has a M.B.A. in Strategic Marketing
and Finance from York University.

Johann Heaven -

Senior Vice President, Investments

Johann Heaven is responsible for leading the
investment team of PML, including overseeing
the research and analysis on local, regional and
global investment opportunities across all asset
classes, leading to the decision making and
execution process.

Mr. Heaven is a Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) charter holder, and holds the Financial Risk
Manager (FRM) certification, and has a Masters
Degree in Finance from the University of London.

On Leave Of Absence

Peter Bunting

Peter Bunting currently serves as Minister of
National Security of the Government of Jamaica.
He hasdedicated hislifetothree driving principles,
Integrity, Respect, and Results. As co-founder,
CEO and Chairman of Dehring Bunting & Golding
Limited (DB&G), Peter putthese principlestowork
and demonstrated his commitment to excellence
in building one of Jamaica’s most innovative and
successful financial institutions.

Mark Golding

Mr. Golding currently serves as Minister of
Justice of the Government of Jamaica and is
a specialist corporate Attorney-At-law. He was
a founding shareholder and director of DB&G
and played an integral role in the success of
that company.
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Statement From The Chairman

I am pleased to report that PROVEN Investments Limited
has successfully completed its third year of operations and

has remained focused on achieving its main objective of

maximizing the returns for our shareholders. The past year

was a challenging but rewarding one, as the global markets

continued their slow recovery, albeit within a context of

heightened volatility and persistent uncertainty.

Net profit for the financial year increased by 26%
when compared with last year, while net revenue
increased by 38%, bolstered by healthy growth
in our gains on securities trading, dividend
income and foreign exchange gains. This was
achieved as we continued to execute on our three
main strategies:

Carry-trade also known as spread income grew
by 4%, as we successfully raised funds through
the restructuring of our liability structure, with
short-term funding being replaced with more
stable long-term funding raised from the market
to better match the maturity profile of our assets
and liabilities.

Portfolio positioning or securities trading
grew by 25%, as we continued to concentrate
on building a portfolio of solid regional and
international sovereign and corporate securities.
While foreign exchange gains contributed US$1.6
million to net revenues, compared to a loss of
USS$S417 thousand last year, as a result of the
strategic repositioning of our currency positions
at the beginning of the year.

During the course of the year, we opted not to
execute any new Private equity transactions.
We have made a conscious decision to be patient

in our approach to Private Equity, evaluating each
opportunity thoroughly and ensuring that when
we do decide to act, the investment will provide
“proven” returns to our shareholders. Our three
existing subsidiaries all performed well during
the year, contributing positively to the profits of
the Group:

Proven Wealth Limited (PWL) contributed
almost US$1 million in Net Profits to the Group
duringthe financial year. On October8,2012, PWL
was awarded a Member Dealer license to trade
listed securities on behalf of itself and its clients
on the Jamaica Stock Exchange (“JSE”). PWL
has also been mandated to bring new issues to
the market.

Given PWL'steam of top financial advisors, wealth
management expertise and innovative suite of
products & services, we are confident that PWL
will continue to be a major player in Jamaica’s
financial industry. Over the coming months, PWL
will seek to achieve increased market penetration
by undertaking a number of strategic initiatives.
These will be geared at providing innovative
wealth management solutions for its clients and
becoming a major player in both the domestic
and regional capital markets.
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Asset Management
Company Limited,

our consumer and business
financing subsidiary,
performed above
expectation doubling 1ts

portfolio during the year.

AMCL 1s the owner of the
Easy Own and eZEEas123
brands through which a
wide array of financing
services are offered. The
coming year 1s poised to
be a good one for the firm
and we expect the returns
to surpass those of the
overall Group.

PROVEN REIT Limited, which serves as the
vehicle for PROVEN'’s real estate investments, has
targeted additional properties for acquisition and
we should see profitable growth in this portfolio
over the coming year.

On behalf of the board, | take this opportunity to
welcome Jeffrey Gellineau, who has joined our
team in the capacity of Director. Mr. Gellineau is an
astute businessman and has extensive experience
in audit and advisory services. We look forward to
his contribution.

In my capacity as Chairman, | will continue to
provide leadership and direction to effect the
further growth of PROVEN Investments Limited
and all our subsidiaries; whilst strengthening our
existing business relationships. We, the board,
are committed to continuously identifying new
opportunities to expand into regional markets
and identify private equity transactions that
will further stimulate our growth and propel us
forward while maximizing stakeholder value.

| wish to express sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, clients, customers and other
stakeholders for their continued support and
trust in our company. | also thank my fellow
directors, management and staff for their loyalty
and dedication as we continue to chart our vision
for PROVEN.

Sincerely,

Hon. Hugh Hart, O.J.
Chairman,
PROVEN Investments Limited



7|

Board Of Directors

Hon. Hugh Hart, O.J.

Chairman

Hugh Hart was admitted to the Bar at Grays Inn, England in1953 and admitted as a Solicitor in Jamaica in April
1956. Mr. Hart is a former Senior Partner and Consultant with the firm Clinton Hart & Co. He is also a founding
Partner of Hart Muirhead Fatta where he practises commercial law, specialising in the areas of taxation, real
estate development, mining and corporate restructuring. He has considerable experience in government, having
served as a member of the Jamaican Senate from 1980-1993, as Minister of Mining & Energy from 1983 -1989
and as Minister of Tourism from 1984 —1989.

In 2011, Mr. Hart was awarded the Order of Jamaica for outstanding contribution to the legal profession and
Bauxite and Mining sectors.

Rhory McNamara

Director & Company Secretary

Rhory McNamara is an attorney-at-law by profession and a Partner in the law firm McNamara & Co. located in
St. Lucia, where he specializes in corporate and banking law and property acquisition. He is also the Manager
of McNamara Corporate Services Inc. where he has amassed nine years of experience in the formation and
management of International Business Companies, International Insurance Companies and International Mutual
Funds formed under the respective governing legislation in Saint Lucia.

Yvor Nassief

Director

Yvor Nassiefis awell accomplished Dominican businessman and former Executive Director of Dominica Coconut
Products 1987-1995 and Fort Young Hotel 1986-2009, both in Dominica. He is currently the Managing Director
and owner of Archipelago Trading Ltd., Dominica, involved in money services, insurance, duty-free retail, real
estate development and distribution.

Between 1995 and 1997, he served in the Dominican Senate as Minister of Tourism and currently serves as
Chairman of Invest Dominica, the island’s investment promotion agency. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from York University, Toronto.
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Garfield Sinclair

Director

Garfield Sinclair is the Country Manager of one of the region’s largest telecommunications giants, LIME Jamaica
& Cayman. Prior to this, Garfield was the President & Chief Operating Officer of Dehring Bunting & Golding
Limited where he was responsible for the overall performance of the operations, treasury and asset trading,
brokerage, marketing and information technology units.

He has an Executive Certificate in Strategy and Innovation from Massachusetts Institute of Technology (Sloan
School of Management), Executive Development Program at the University of Pennsylvania (Wharton),
the California Board of Accountancy — C.P.A. license (non-practising), Uniform Certified Public Accounting
examination and a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from the San Diego State University.

John A. Collins

Director

John Collins has a distinguished career in Trust banking, spanning over 40 years. During this time, he served
in senior positions in Trust companies in England, Kenya and Jamaica, before moving to Cayman in 1966 to
open and manage the Bank of Nova Scotia Trust Company (Cayman) Limited. In 1973, he moved to Ansbacher
(Cayman) Limited, where he stayed until retiring as Executive Director in 1995, but continued as a non-Executive
Director until October 2000. Since 2000, he has acted as consultant and director to a private group of Trusts
and Companies.

Mr. Collins is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bankers and was appointed a Member of the Most Excellent
Order of the British Empire in Her Majesty the Queen’s New Year’s Honour Listing 1986.

Jeffrey Gellineau

Director

Jeffrey Gellineau has over 27 years of extensive audit experience at KPMG, Barbados. He has been the
engagement partner in managing and providing audit and other advisory services to clients, both regionally and
internationally. This involved assessment of client’s internal controls and business risks to ensure that they were
adequately addressed. Mr. Gellineau is a member of both the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and
the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Barbados.

During the period January 2009 to November 2010, he was the Project Coordinator for a World Bank funded
project “Strengthening Institutional Capacity for Project Implementation” which addressed Capacity Building for
Financial Management and Procurement for Capital Projects in the OECS Countries.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Operating Environment: Over the past financial year,

global prospects continued to show signs of 1improvement,

although theroadtorecoveryinthe world’slargesteconomies

remains rocky. Policymakers in the US and Eurozone were

successful in defusing two of the biggest threats to the
global recovery, a breakup of the euro area and a sharp
fiscal contraction 1n the United States caused by a plunge

off the “fiscal chiff™.

In the United States, prospects have brightened;
a recovery in the housing market and progress
in  household deleveraging are bolstering
consumption, while banks are poised to
increase lending. Emerging market risks have
also declined, as growth has stabilized and
external funding conditions for emerging market
economies are very favorable. However, near-
term economic prospects in the euro area remain
weak, as public and private balance sheet repair
and bank deleveraging continue. Overall, in
response to accommodative monetary policies
and precautionary policy measures, markets have
rallied and near-term stability risks have eased.

The international bond markets in particular
delivered healthy returns during the year, with
positive performance across the board for the
major asset classes. The primary driver of bond
market performance was the policy of ultra-low
interest rates being pursued by the major global
central banks, which depressed vyields (and
supported prices) of short-term securities and
government bonds. The low yields on these safer
investments, in turn, caused investors to search
for alternatives in the higher-risk, higher yielding
segments of the market.

Financial Performance
The positive performance in
the global financial markets
had a positive impact on
PIL’s performance for the
financial year ended March
31, 2013. Consolidated Net
Profit amounted to US$4.16
million or US$0.0141 per
share, representing a 26%
increase over the prior

year and translating to an
annualized return on equity

of 12.02%.
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Net Profit (US$ Millions)

H011° 212 2013

Consolidated Net Revenue surged 38% to
USS$9.95 million as asset prices experienced
broad-based gains during the period on the heels
of increased confidence in the global economy,
and we continued to benefit from the increased
diversification of our income streams.

Net Revenue (US$ Millions)

2011* 202 2013

Gains on Securities Trading and Dividend Income
were the most notable contributors to this growth,
climbing 25% and 40%, to US$4.15 million and
USS$S1.26 million respectively. In addition, PIL
realized Foreign Exchange Gains of US$1.57
million versus a loss of US$417 thousand in the
prior year. On the other hand, Net Interest Income
fell 7% to US$2.89 million, when compared to
the prior year, as the increase in Interest Income
was offset by higher Interest Expenses. Fees &
Commission Income also declined moving from
US$140 thousand to US$55 thousand.

Net Revenue Breakdown 2012

12%
e 37%

40%

+40% - Gain on Securities Trading
+ 37% - Net Interest Income
+12% - Other

+ 11% -Dividends

Net Revenue Breakdown 2013

+41% - Gain on Securities Trading
+29% -NetInterest Income
+17% -Dividends

+11% -Other

*includes one-off Gain on Purchase of Subsidiary amounting
to USS5.01 million

CARRY TRADE

During the year, we continued to successfully
raise funds by issuing Notes through private
placement to execute our carry trade strategy of
investing in a diversified portfolio of securities at a
positive spread. We realized moderate growth in
revenues from this strategy during the period with
Net Interest Income and Dividend Income from
our fixed-income fund holdings increasing 3.8%
to US$4.15 million in aggregate.
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Net Interest Income & Dividends (US$ Millions)

PORTFOLIO POSITIONING

Securities trading remained our largest income
earner, generating 37.2% of total Net Revenue.
Solid gains were realized during the period,
with Net Fair Value Adjustments & Realized
Gains up 25.4% to $4.15 million, as asset prices
recovered, prompted by markets stabilizing
amidst improvements in the overall economic
environment globally.

Net Realized Gains (US$ Millions)

Our fixed income holdings, which are for the most
part classified as investment grade, represent
the bulk of the securities in our portfolio. We
continued to carefully and strategically monitor
the investment arena for trading opportunities so
as to take advantage of profitable investments as
they surfaced. In light of this, we increased our
equity holdings as stocks benefited largely from
the improved risk sentiment spurred by various
events, including sustained monetary easing
overseas, but continued to limit our exposure to
equity markets due to the volatility they present.

Private Equity

We continued to focus on
the Tourism, Healthcare,
Security, Real Estate,

and Financial Services
Industries across the

region for private equity
investments and remained
active 1n our exploration of
potential transactions.
However we pursued

only those that fit PIL’s

risk return objectives to
ensure the protection of
shareholder capital. Private
equity remains vital to our
long term growth strategy
and all our operating units
performed well during the
financial year.

PROVEN Wealth Limited

Proven Wealth Limited (“PWL"”) contributed
US$970,000 to the Net Profits of the Group.
PWL continues to execute its strategy of
deleveraging its Balance Sheet and reducing
the riskiness of the operations, with Total
Assets now amounting to US$48.7 million
compared to USS$64 million at the beginning
of the financial year.
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Asset Management Company Limited
We are very satisfied with the US$383,000
in net revenue contributed to the Group
by Asset Management Company Limited
(“AMCL”) during the year. The company,
which offers, consumer, personal, education
and business loans, has seen a 102% growth
in its loan portfolio since the start of the
financial year. The Company continues to
expand its product offerings and reach
through marketing and other initiatives. It is
anticipated that AMCL will contribute to PIL’s
bottom line growth during the upcoming
financial year.

PROVEN REIT Limited

PROVEN REIT Limited provided Net Rental
Income of US$43,325 for the financial year.
Though small in the context of total revenue,
the company’s only source of income
presently is a relatively small apartment
complex located in St. Andrew, Jamaica.
As such, we see a huge potential for future
growth via real estate investments with
good rental income generating capacity
and strong prospects for future appreciation
invalue.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Consolidated Operating Expenses increased to
USS$5.4 million from USS$3.78 million in the prior
year. General inflationary pressures, the inclusion
of Asset Management Company Limited and the
recording of a one-off provision of $600,000 were
the primary reasons for the 42% rise in Operating
Expenses. Our Efficiency Ratio at the end of the
financial year stood at 54.3%.

Operating Expenses (US$ Millions)

Preterence
Dividemis
2.95

1.06
3.24

Total Assets

Total assets grew to USS$144.16 million from
US$140.2 million, largely as a result of increased
Cash & Cash Equivalents and Available-for-Sale
Assets. At the same time, our Total Liabilities
increased to US$108.26 million from US$106.98
million mainly due to the issuance of Notes
during the period. Notes Payable rose 17% to
US$63.6 million.

Total Assets (US$ Millions)

SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

Our Investment Revaluation Reserve stood at
US$236 thousand as at March 31, 2013. This
compares to net unrealized fair value losses of
USS$2.23 million at the prior year end, as global
asset prices rebounded significantly during the
year. As a result, Shareholder’s Equity increased
8% to stand at US$35.9 million or US$0.1229
per share.

Shareholder’s Equity (US$ Millions)

DIVIDEND PAYMENT

Total dividend payments for the financial year
aggregatedto US$0.0097 pershare, representing
approximately 68.8% of the audited net profits
for the year. This corresponds to an annualized
tax-free dividend yield of 8.82%, based on the
Company'’s share price of USS0.11 at the end of
the financial year.
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Risk Management

By 1ts nature, PIL’s
activities are principally
related to the use of
financial mstruments.
The Company’s activities
therefore expose it to a
variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk and other
operational risk. The aim
1s therefore to achieve

an appropriate balance
between risk and return
and minimise potential
adverse effects on the
Company’s financial
performance.

PIL’s risk management
policies are designed to
identify and analyse these
risks, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and

to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits

by means of reliable

and up-to-date
information systems.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible
for the establishment and oversight of the
risk management framework. The Board has
established committees for managing and
monitoring risks, as follows:

(i) Investment Management Committee
(ii) Audit Committee

The Investment Management Committee
oversees how management monitors compliance
with the risk management policies and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks
faced by the Company.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of default by an obligor.
This risk is managed primarily by reviews of the
financial status of each obligor. Credit risk may be
disaggregated into three (3) types of risk:

i. Default (Counterparty) Risk: The
possibility that the issuer will fail to meet its
payment obligations or other contractual
covenants. Technical default may occur due
to the issuer’s violation of other agreed terms
(e.g. failure to maintain a certain financial
ratio at/above a pre-determined level).

ii. Credit spread Risk: Measured by the
amount of yield differential above the return
on a benchmark, default-free security (e.g.
Treasury bills) demanded by investors to
compensate for buying the riskier security.
The risk is that the riskier security might offer
alower than required premium.

iii. Downgrade Risk: Risk that a bond will be
reclassified as a riskier security by a credit
rating agency (e.g. Standard & Poor’s). A
downgrade in the rating of a security usually
leads to a fall in its market price.

To mitigate credit risk exposure, the
Company:

i. Seeks to ensure that no credit rating for
an asset falls below the minimum approved
rating. Credit ratings are sourced from
International rating agencies such as
S&P, Moody’s or CariCris, or from internal
credit research.
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ii. Ensures that the assets are diversified
across various issuers (e.g. countries,
corporations) subject to limitations on the
maximum exposure to any one issuer.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its
financial liabilities. Liquidity risk may result from
an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at, or
closeto, its fair value. PIL’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due under both normal or stressed conditions.
Prudent liquidity risk management procedures
which are used include maintaining sufficient
cash and marketable securities, and monitoring
future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis.

The Company’s liquidity management
process includes:
i. Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on
adaily basis. Thisincorporates an assessment
of expected cash flows and the availability of
high grade collateral which could be used to
secure funding if required;

ii. Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable
anddiverse assetsthat can easily be liquidated
as protection against any unforeseen
interruption to cash flow;

iii. Optimising cash returns on investment;

iv. Monitoring statement of financial position
liquidity ratios against internal requirements.
The most important of these is to maintain
limits on the ratio of net liquid assets to
customer liabilities; and

v. Managing the concentration and profile
of debt maturities. Monitoring and reporting
take the form of cash flow measurement
and projections for the next day, week and
month, respectively, as these are key periods
for liquidity management. The starting point
for these projections is an analysis of the
contractual maturity of the financial liabilities
and the expected collection date of the
financial assets.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
as a result of changes in market prices, whether
caused by factors specific to the individual
security or its issuer, or factors affecting all
securities traded in the market.

These arise mainly from changes in interest rate,
foreign currency rate and equity prices and will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. Market risk
is monitored by the Investment Management
Committee which carries out extensive research
and monitors the price movement of financial
assets on the local and international markets.
Market risk exposure is measured using
sensitivity analysis.

i. Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the
risk that the market value of, or the cash flows
from, financial instruments will vary because
of exchange rate fluctuations. PIL is exposed
to foreign currency risk due to fluctuations in
exchange rates on transactions and balances
that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency. The main currencies
giving rise to this risk are the Jamaican dollar
(JMDS), Euro (€) and Trinidad and Tobago
(TTDS). The Company manages this risk by
matching foreign currency assets with foreign
currency liabilities, to the extent practicable.
The net foreign currency exposure is kept
at the targeted levels by buying or selling
currencies at spot rates when necessary to
address imbalances.

ii. Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the
risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rates. PIL manages this risk by monitoring
interest rates daily. Even though there are
no formally predetermined gap limits, where
possible and to the extent judged appropriate,
the maturity profile of its financial assets is
matched by that of its financial liabilities.
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Where gaps are deliberately arranged,
management expects that its monitoring will,
on a timely basis, identify the need to take
appropriate action to close a gap if it becomes
necessary.Floating rate instruments expose
the Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas
fixed interest rate instruments expose the
Company to fair value interest risk.

iii. Price Risk: Equity price risk arises from
equity securities held by the Company as
part of its investment portfolio. Management
monitors the mix of debt and equity
securities in its investment portfolio based
on market expectations. The primary goal
of PIL’s investment strategy is to maximise

investment returns.

OPERATIONAL RISK
Operational Risk is the risk arising from execution of
an enterprise’s business functions and in particular
the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events such as:

i. Internal Fraud: Misappropriation of assets,
tax evasion, intentional mismarking of positions,
bribery;

ii. External Fraud: Theft of information, hacking
damage, third-party theft and also forgery;

iii. Employment Practices and Workplace
Safety: Employee health and safety,
discrimination, workers compensation;

iv. Clients, Products, & Business Practice:
Market manipulation, antitrust, improper trade,
product defects, fiduciary breaches, account
churning;

v. Damage to Physical Assets: Natural
disasters, terrorism, vandalism;

vi. Business Disruption & Systems Failures:
Utility disruptions, software failures, hardware
failures;

vii. Execution, Delivery, & Process
Management: Data entry errors, accounting
errors, failed mandatory reporting, negligent
loss of client assets.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

PROVEN Investments Limited holds the firm belief that
while adding value to the investments of our clients and all
stakeholders of the company, we should also take due care to
add value to our environment. As such, we have contributedto a
number of projects spearheaded by clubs and societies within
the Caribbean community such as the Kiwanis, Rotary and
Optimist clubs.

We have also assisted a number of schools, individuals
and hospices with their development programs, whether in
education, athletics or personal growth and self enhancement;
or the improvement of their surroundings. We are proud
contributors towards the development of our Caribbean
people and will continue to extend our hand towards building a
better society.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Members of
PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Proven Investments Limited (“the Company™} and
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary (“the Group™), set out on
pages 3 to 53, which comprise the Group’s and Company’s statement of {inancial position as af
March 31, 2013, the Group's and Company’s statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the period then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors ' Responstbility

OCur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit n accordance with International Standards on Auditing, Those standards
reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtan
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obiain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 13 sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our audif opinion.

Y PhG Erglorn Caribbean, o partasrehip segistercd @ AnguiBa Aniges 8.
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To the Members of
PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements, continued

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group and the Company as at March 31, 2013, and of the Group's and Company’s financial performance,

changes in equity and cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards,

pnG

KPMG Eastern Caribbean
May 29, 2613

Castries, Saint L.ucia



PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Statement of Fipancial Position

March 31, 2G13
Group Company
Notes 20313 2012 2813 2012
$oco $000 $000 000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,558 2,968 2821 i,219
Resale agreements 4 2,515 882 1,311 344
Investment securities 3 114,438 101,033 86,389 63,500
Loans receivable 6 16,078 25,334 5,228 5,682
Other assets 7 2,861 3,719 1,245 2298
Owed by related party 25 - i85 212
Income tax recoverable 3,702 5,145 - 89
investment in subsidiaries 8 - " 17,47G 17,470
Investrnent property G 693 7853 - -
{ntangible asset 10 31 41 - -
Property, plant and equipment 11 248 347 -
Deferred lax asset 17 8 - - -
Total assets 144,136 113,819
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Bunk overdrafl . 223 . 223
Repurchase agreements 12 31,370 353,344 4,953 -
Credit linked notes 13 1,573 4,370 - 688
Owed to related parties 14 325 104 402 106
Notes payable i3 63,600 54,172 55298 38,294
Preference shares i6 6,922 i1,240 G922 11,240
Cuirent income tax payable 50 38 43 37
Deforred tax Habilities 17 216 213 - -
Cther ltabilities 1200 1.274 435 428
Total Habilities 168,260 106,976 71,075 51616
Sharcholders” equity:
Share capital i8 29,657 29,657 29,657 28,657
Fair value reserve 19 236 { 2228 1,361 { L1135
Foreign exchange translation reserve 20 { 1,463) { 148) - .
Retained earnings _ 7347 5,822 il.726 11,256
Eguity attributable to owners of
the company 35,777 33,103 42,744 39,798
Non-controlling interest 119 117 - -
Total shareholders” equity La35.896 33,220 36,798
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 144,130 140,190 90814

The financial statements on pages 3 to 55 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on May 29, 2013 and signed on its behalf by:

6%/ /{/ Chairman

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended March 31, 2013

Group Company
Notes 2013 2812 2013 2012
$000 $1006 $500 $604
Net inferest iIncome and other operating revenue
Interest income 7,361 7,676 3,622 2,894
Interest expense { 4.474) (3,979} {2.535) {1,603
Net interest income 2i 2.887 3.097 1,087 1,291
Other operating revenue
Dividends 1,260 899 1,259 2,855
Fees and commissions 35 1440 - -
Net fair value adiustments and realised gains 2 4,151 3,310 3,092 2,121
Net foreign exchange gains/{losses) 1,572 { 411 818 {274
Increase in fair value of investment property - 179 - -
CGther income ol 7 6 -
Impairment of loans 6 ¢ 4bh - . -
Goodwill written off . {  ®n o w
Other operating revenue 7058 4,109 5,173 4,708
Net interest income and other operafing revenue 9.945 1.286 6,262 5.996
Expenses
Staff costs 23 1,425 1,252 74 23
Depreciation and amortisation 10,11 88 76 - -
Preference share dividensd 18,26 1,064 538 1,064 538
Other operating expenses 24 2,823 1.813 1,580 922
5.408 3774 3.118 1.483
Profit before income tax 4,345 3,427 3,144 4,513
income fax (chargdyferedit 23 {390 (L 1an {46 il
Profit for the year 4.153 3.294 3008 4,584
(ther comprehensive income
Realised Josses on available-for-sale securities 16 - 912 -
Unrealised gains/{losses) on available-for-sale investments,
net of tax 2,454 {1,487} 1,564 { 776}
Foreign exchange translation reserve (1315 (ALY - -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 1,149 {1.662) 2476 (_T76)
Fotai comprekensive income for the year $.5.304 032 3,574 3,808

Profit attributable o)
Cwners of the company 4,153 3,263
Nen-controlling interests 2

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to.

Cremers of the company 5,302 1,601

Non-controliing interests Z 3t

‘Total comprehensive income for the year 5,304 1632
Earnings per stock unit 29 14ly L2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Statement of Group Changes in Equity
Year ended March 31, 2013

Padzaces at March 31, 2011

Total comprehensive theome for the year
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Foreign exchange differences on transiation
of forgipn subsidiary's financial statements
{nreatised losses on fair value of
available. for sale securities
Deforred tax on unrealised losses

Totat other comprehensive loss for the
year, netof fax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners recorded directly
in SOuity!
Acguisition of subsidiary with nen-controling
interest
Dividends 10 equity holders (note 30}

Total transactions with owners

Balznces at March 31, 2612

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Qther comprohensive income for the year
Foreign exchange differences on transiation
of foreign subsidiary’s financial statements
Reatised losses on avatlable: for-sale securities
Unrealised gain on fair value of
avaitable-for-sale securities
Deferred tax on unrealised losses

Totai other comprehensive loss fot the
yeat, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transacitons with owners recorded directly
in equity
Dividends to eguity holders (note 36}

Total transactions with owners

Balances at March 3}, 2613

Attributabie
to
Foreign Sguity
Fair exchange fipkders Non
Share value transtation  Retained  ofthe  comtrolling
capital  reserve reserve earnings  group  infersst Total
$°060 3000 $oo0 $'000 000 3000 $'000
(note 18) (note 15}
29,657 {748 27 5304 34247 o 34,247
- - - 3,263 3,263 31 3294
- ( 175) . { 175 - ( 17%
- {1,843} - {1,843} - { 1,843y
S e - 356 356
- {1487} {_ 1% - {_1.662} - { 1662}
- {1,487 Y 3263 168l . 31 1632
- - - . - 86 86
s - - 2,045y (2145 . {2745
2 =B (2745 ( 2.74%) 84 {2,659
29657  {2.22%) { _148) 5.822 33103 g 33220
. o - 4,153 4,153 2 4,155
- . {1,315} - { 1,315) - { 1,315}
- 10 . . 14 i
- 2,454 . - 2,454 2,454
e, 2464 (1315 . 1,149 1,149
..... . 2ABK {1315 4,153 5302 2 5,304
- - {2.628) { 2628 {2628
B, = — (2.628) (2,628 {_2.638)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Statement of Company Changes in Equity
Year ended March 31, 2013

Share

capital

$°000
{note 18)

Balances at March 31, 2011 29,657

Total comprehensive income for the ycar
Profit for the year -

Other comprehensive income for the year
Unrealised losses in fair value of
gvatlable-for-sale securities -

‘Total comprehensive income for the year -

‘Transactions with owners recorded directly
in equity:
Dividends to equity holders, being total
transactions with owners {note 30) -

Balances at March 31, 2612 29.657

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year -

Other comprehensive income for the year
Unrealised gain in fair vaive of
available-for-sale securities -
Realised loss in fair value of
available-for-sale security -

Total comprehensive income for the year =

Transactions with owners recorded directly
in equity:
Dividends to equity holders, being total
transactions with owners {note 30) -

Balanees at March 331, 2613 29.657

Fair
valuye
reserve
$000
{note 19)

339

(.276)

(776

(1L.113)

1,361

The accompanying notes form an ntegral part of the financial statements.

Retained
garnings
$'000

4,584

(L2.743)
11,256

3,098

Total
$1000

{.176)
3.808

39,798

|

3,008

1,564

R wl
i

!

(]
(.3
3
E=s

|

(.2:628)
42044



PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2013

Croup Company
Notes 2013 2012 2013 2012
3000 $000 $000 $000
Cash flows from sperating activities:
Profit for the year 4,155 3,294 3,098 4,584
Adjusiments for:
Depreciation 11 73 64 - -
Amortisation 14 15 iz - -
Imterest income { 7,3613 { 7,076) £ 3,622) { 2,804
{mterest expense 4,474 3,979 2,535 1,603
Loss on disposal of fixed assets | 60 - -
1.0ss on acquisition of subsidiary - 9 - -
Appreciation in value of securities
at fair value through profit or loss " - - 77
Increase in fair value of investment
property - ( 179 C
Unrealised forcign exchange loss € 1,228) " { 4% 260
Ingome tax charge/(credit) 25 396 i33 46 (71}
519 296 2,008 3,559
Change in:
Investment seeurities {190,939 { 2,853) (21,682) {2'7,906)
L.oans recetvable 9,258 {17,560} 454 2,094
Other assets 980 11,316 1,562 11,110
Owed by rejated party { 25 - { 155) ¢ 212
Other liabilities 310 { 223 186 145
Repurchase agreements { 3.974) (31,110) { 96T} ( 2,944
Income tax recoverable 1,443 613 { a0 { 1
Resale agreements { 1,633} 8432 4,955 62
Credit linked notes { 2,797 { 442) ( 688 688
Owed to related patly 225 {200y 296 {_197)
{ 6,633) {31,731} (14,071) {13.675)
Interest received 7,239 7,650 3415 2,842
Interest paid { 4,858) ( 3,760) {2,694 (1360
Income tax paid {380 (___285) E =
Net cash used by operating activities {4632 {28,686) (13,3530} (12,193}
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in subsidiary 9 " - { S04
Purchase of investrment property - (606} “ “
Purchase of subsidiary 9 - ( 339 “ -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11 { 18} ( 3% - -
Purchase of intangible assets 18 { 3N ( 443 - "
Net cash vsed by investing activities ( 335 {_1.05% - {904)
Net cash fiows from operating and investing
activities (carried forward to page 8) { 4.687) (29,743) {13.350) (13.097)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.




PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2013
Croup Company
Notes 2013 2012 2013 2012
$400 $0060 3000 $'000
Cash flows from operafing and investing
activities (brought forward from page 7) { 4687} {29.745) (13,350} {13,097}
Cash Nows from firancing activities;
Notes payable 9428 20,425 17,603 4,723
issue of preference shares - 11,239 - 11,239
Dividend paid 30 { 2,628} { 2,743) { 2,628} ( 2,745}
Non-controlling interest - 86 - -
Bank overdrafi P 2LY 223 ( 22%) 723
Net cash provided by financing
activities 6.377 29,228 14,152 13,440
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents 1,890 { 5i7 802 343
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash
and cash equivalents { 1,2403 { 171 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of period 2.90 396 1,219 876
Cash and cash equivalents af end of period Pkt 2508 2021 AN

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31,2013

1. Identification
Proven Investments Limited (“the Company™) was incerporated in Saint Lucia on November
25, 2009 under the International Business Companies Act and commenced operations on March
1, 2010. As of August 17, 2019, the Company entered an agreement with Guardian Holdings
Limited to acquire the entire issued share capital of Guardian Asset Management Jamaica
Limited, which was then renamed Proven Wealth Limited, The Company's registered office is
located at 20 Micoud Street, Castries, Saint Lucia,

The primary activities of the Company are the holding of fradable securities for investment
purposes and holding other investments,

"Group"” refers to the Company and its subsidiaries, as follows:

Country of Perceniage ownership
Subsidiaries incorporation  Nature of Business 2013 2012
. . Funds management,
Proven Wealth Limited Jamaica investment advisory services, HHH 106
money market and equity
trading
Proven REIT Limited and its Saint Lucia Real estale investment 85 3
wholly-owned subsidiary
Proven Kingsway Saint Lucia Real estate investent 100 100
Limnited
Asset Management Company Jamaica Hite purchase financing 10 160
Limited

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

{a) Statement of compliance:

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board,

New, revised and amended standards and interprefations that hecame effective
during the period

Certain new, revised and amended standards and interpretations came into effect during
the year under review, They did not have any significant effect on the financial
statements, and, based on the Group’s current operations, none of them is expected fo
have any significant effect on the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
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PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements {confinued)
March 31,2013

2.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {cont’ d)

(a)

Statement of compliance: (cont’d)
New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

At the date of approval of these financial statements, cerfain new, revised and amended
standards and interpretations were in issue but were not yet effective and had not been
early-adopted. The Group has assessed their relevance with respect to its operations and
has concluded that the following may be relevant;

o IAS 1, Preseniation of Financial Statements, was smended by the issue of
“Presentation of Financial Statements: Presentation of IHems of Other
Comprehensive Income”, effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2012, which requires an entity to present separately the items of other
comprehensive income (“OCI1") that may be reclassified to profit or loss in the future
from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. It does not change the
existing option to present the profit or loss and other comprehensive income in two
statements but changes the title of the ‘Statement of Comprehensive Income’ to
*Statement of Profit or Logs and Other Comprehensive Income’.

s IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or afier January I, 2015, retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes two primary measurement categories for financial assets:
amertised cost and fair value. It also includes guidance on classification and
measurement of financial liabilities designated ag at fair value through profit or loss
and incorporates certain existing requirements of IAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, on the recognition and de-recognition of financial
assets and financial Habilities,

+ IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, which i effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, introduces a new approach to
determining which investees should be consolidated. It was issued as part of a suite
of consolidation and related standards, also replacing existing requirements for joint
ventures (now ‘joint arrangements’) and making limited amendments in relation to
associates. IFRS 10 supersedes IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, and S1C-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities, and provides a
single model fo be applied in the control analysis for all investees, including entities
that currently are SPEs in the scope of SIC-12. An invesior controls an investee
when (i) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, (ii} has the ability to affect those returns through ifs power over the investee
and {iii) there is a link between power and returns.
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PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (coniinued)

March 31, 2013

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {cont’d)

(a) Statement of compliance {cont’d):

New, revised and amended standards and inferpretations that are not yet effective
(cont’d}

IFRS 11, Joinmt Arrangements, which is effective for annual reposting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013, identifies two main types of joint
arrangements - joint operations and joint ventures:

{ii} Joint operations refers to those cases in which although there is a separate
vehicle created by the venturers, that separation is ineffective in certain ways.
These joint arrangements are treated similarly to jeintly controiled
assets/operations under IAS 31.

(iii)  Joint ventures refers to all other joint arrangements. They are required to be
accounted for using the equify method (thus prohibiting the use of
preportionate consolidation). The application of the equity method is subject
te two exemptions carried forward from IAS 28 (2008) and 1AS 31,

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities, which is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after from January 1, 2013, contains disclosure
requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, jeint arrangements {ig,
joint operations or joint veniures), associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. The disclosure requirements encompass risk exposures for the sponsor of
such an entity even if it no longer has any contractual involvement. These required
disclosures aim to provide information to enable users to evaluate the nature of, and
risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entities and the effects of those
interests on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows,

The Group is required to: undersiand what a structured entity is in the context of itg
operations; apply judgement in assessing whether it is ‘involved” with a structured
entity, which has the potential to broaden the fransactions and relationships to which
the disclosures may apply, particularty for those who sponsor, or perhaps oven
transact business with, but do not consolidate, structured entities; and assess the level
of disclosure that it believes will be meaningful to users of the financial statements,

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measwrement, which is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013, defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. It explains how to measure fair value and is applicable to assets,
Habilities and an entity’s own equity instruments that, under other IFRSs, are required
or permitted fo be measured at fair value, or when disclosure of fair values is
provided. Tt does not introduce new fair value measurements, nor does it eliminate
the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in certain
standards.



PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

March 31. 2013

2.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {cont’d}

(a)

Statement of compliance {cont’d}:

1AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, has been amended, effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, to clarify those conditions
needed to meet the criteria specified for offsetting financial assets and liabilities. It
requires the entity to prove that there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the
recognised amounts, Conditions such as whether the set-off is contingent on a future
event, the nature and right of set-off, and laws applicable to the relationships between
the parties invoived should be examined. Additionally, to meet the criteria, an entity
should intend either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
Hability simultancously.

Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 contains amendments to certain standards and
interpretations and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
Jannary 1, 2013. The main amendments applicabie to the Group are as follows:

. 1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statemenis, has been amended fo clarify
that only one comparative period, which is the preceding period, is reguired
for a complete set of financial statements. 1AS 1 requires the presentation of
an opening statement of financial position when an entity appiies an
accounting policy refrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification. IAS 1 has been amended to clarify that (a) the opening
statement of financial position is required only if a change in accounting
policy, a retrospective restatement or a reclassification has a material effect
upon the information in that statement of financial position; (b) except for the
disclosures required under IAS 8, notes related to the opening statement of
financial position are no longer required; and (c) the appropriate date for the
opening statement of financial position is the beginning of the preceding
period, rather than the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented.

» 1AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, has been amended to clarify that the
definition of ‘property, plant and equipment’ in IAS 16 is now considered in
determining whether spare parts, standby-by equipment and servicing
equipment shouid be accounted for under the standard. If these items do not
meet the definition, then they are accounted for using /48 2, Inventories.

. IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presenfation, has been amended to clarify
that IAS 12, Mcome Taxes, applies to the accounting for income iaxes
refating to distributions to holders of an equity insfrument and transaction
costs of an equity transaction.

The Group is assessing the impact that these new, revised and amended standards and
interpretations will, when they become effective, have on its financial statements.
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PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
March 31, 2013

2.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {cont’d)

(b)

©

(d)

Basis of measurement:

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the inclusion
at fair value of available—for—sale securities, financial assets at fair value through profit or
ioss and investment property.

Functional and presentation currency:

The financial statements are presented in United States dollars {US$), which is the
functional curtency of the Company, uniess otherwise indicated. The financial
statements of those subsidiaries which have the Jamaica dollar as their functional
currency, are franslated into USS in the manner set out in note 3(j).

Accounting estimates and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reperted amounts of, and
disclosures relating fo, assets, labilities, contingent assets and contingent Habilities at the
reporting date and the income and expenses for the period then ended. Actual amounts
couid differ from those estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The significant assumptions about the future and key areas of estimation uncertainty and
the critical judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, and have a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next financial period, are as follows:

(i}  Key sources of estimation uncertainty:
s Allowance for impairment losses:

Management makes judgments regarding indicators of impairment, that is,
whether there are indicators that suggest there may be 2 measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans, investiments and other financial
assets - for example, indicators such as repayment default and adverse
economic conditions.

In determining the total aliowance for impairment, management e¢valuates
financial assets individually for impairment, based on management’s best
estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received
from the counierparties, In estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgements about a counterparty’s financial situation and the net realisable
value of any collateral.
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PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
March 31, 2013

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (cont’d)

(d)

(©)

Accounting estimates and judgements {cont’d):

{1

(i1}

Key sources of estimation uncertainty {cont’d}:

[

Fair value of financia} instruments:

In the absence of quoted market prices, the fair value of a significant
proportion of the Group’s financial instruments was determined using a
generally accepted alternative to quoted market prices,  Considerable
judgement is required in interpreting market data to arrive at estimates of fair
value, Consequently, the estimates arrived at may be significantly different
from the actual price of the instrument in an arm’s ength transaction.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies;

Management is sometimes alse required to make critical judgements in applying
accounting policies. There were no criticai judgements in applying accounting
policies for the period ended March 31, 2013.

Comparative information

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with changes in
presentation in the current year,

3, Significant accounting policies

()

(®)

Basis of consotidation:

The consolidated financial statements combine the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries {note 1), subject to the
eliminations described at note 3{a)(ii).

()

(D)

Subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries are all entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities, In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable, or exercisable after
conversion of convertible instruments, are taken into account. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases,

Transactions eliminated on consolidation:

Intra~group balances and any unrealised gains and losses and income and
expenses arising from infra-group fransactions are eliminated in preparing the
consoiidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment of the Group’s interest,

Financial assets and liabitities:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enterprise
and a financial Hability or equity instrument of another enterprise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued}
March 31,2613

3.

Significant accounting pelicies (cont’d}

)

Financial assets and liabilities (cont’d):

(&

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

()

Recognition:

The Group initiaily recognises loans on the date at which it becomes a party to the
coniractual provisions of the instruments -I.e., the date that they are originated. All
other financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated as at
fair value through profit or foss) are initially recognised on the frade date — the date
on which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Derecognition:

The Group derecognises a financial instrument when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as
a separate asset or liability on the statement of financial position.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
staternent of financial position, but retains either all risks and rewards of the
transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards
are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised from the statement of
financial position. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks
and rewards include, for example, securities lending and repurchase transactions.
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations expire
or are discharged or cancelled.

Offsetting:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position only when the Group hag 2 legal right to set off the
recognised amounts and it intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and
settle the Hability simuitaneousty.

Amortised cost;

Amoriised cost is calculated using the effective interest methed. Premiums,
discounts and initial transaction costs are incinded in the carrying amount of the
related instrument and amortised based on the effective interest rate of the
instrument.

Fair value measurement principles:
Fair value is the arm’s length consideration for which an asset could be exchanged

or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no
compulsion to act and is best evidenced by a quoted market price, if one exists.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

March 31, 2013

3

Sipnificant accounting poligies {cont’d)

{b} Financial assets and liabilities {cont’d):

v

Fair value measurement principles (cont’d):

A financial asset or liability is measured initially at fair value, The best evidence of
fair value at initial recognition is the transaction price, unless the fair value of that
instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observabie current market
fransactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data observable from markets. When transaction price
provides the best evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the financial
instrument is initially measured at the transaction price and any difference between
this price and the value initially obtained from a valuation mode! is subsequently
recognised in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income for changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale assets.

When the available-for-sale assets are impaired, sold, collected or otherwise
disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income
is included in profit or loss.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, resale agreements, owed by related
party, other receivables, bank overdraft, repurchase agreements, credit linked notes,
owed to related party, notes payable, preference shares and other labilities are
considered to approximate their carrying values due fo their relatively short term.

The fair values of avaiiable-for-sale securities are the amounts at which these
securities are carried (see note 5) in accordance with policy note 3(¢). These vatues
are based on quoted prices in an active market, where available, or determined
using a generally accepted alternative to quoted market prices.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange dealer, broker or other agency and represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. In the absence of an active
market, other valuation technigues are used. 'The chosen valuation technigue
makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates
specific to the Group and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for
pricing financial instruments.

Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and
measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the financial instrument. Any
instrument that does not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, is stated at cost, including transaction costs,
less impairment losses. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is
a market related rate af the reporting date for an instrument with similar terms and
conditions.

The estimated fair value of loans is assumed to be the principal receivable less any
provision for losses, as these financial assets are generally repriced when market
interest rates change.

The fair values of notes payable are considered to approximate their carrying
values, as they bear rates which approximate market rates prevailing at the
reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

March 31, 2013
3. Significant gccounting policies (cont’d)

(b}

Financial assets and liabilities (cont’d}):

(vi}

{vii)

Non-trading derivatives:

The Group evatuates financial instruments which it acquires or issues to determine
whether derivatives are embedded in any of the confracts (making it a “host
contract”). The Group accounts for an embedded derivative separately from the
host contract when (1} the host confract is not itself carried at fair value through
profit or ioss, {ii) the terms of the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative if they were contained in a separate contract, and (iii) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not ¢losely related fo the
economic¢ characteristics and risks of the host contract, Separated embedded
derivatives are accounted for depending on their classification, and are presented in
the statement of financial position together with the hest contract, When an
embedded derivative cannot be separated from the host contract, the entire contract
is designated as at fair value through profit or loss,

When a derivative is not heild for trading, and is net designated in a qualifying
hedge relationship, all changes in its fair value are recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a component of net income from other financial instroments at fair vahue
through profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand and call deposits. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly Hquid financial assets that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, are subiect to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes. These include certificates of deposit where the
maturities do not exceed three months from the date of acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost.

{viil} Other assets:

(ix)

Other assets are stated at amortised cost {ess impairment Josses.
Other iiabilities:

Other liabilities are stated at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
March 31, 2013

3,

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

()

(&)

Investmenis:

Available-for-sale financial assets:

The Group’s investments in equity securities and certain debt securities are classified as
available-for-sale and are carried at fair value except for unguoted equity securities whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are carried at cost. Changes therein, other
than impairment losses, and foreign exchange gains and losses on available-for-sale
monetary items, are recognised directly in other comprehensive income. When an
investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or
loss.

Investments at fair value through prefit or loss:

The Group carries some investment securities at fair vajue through profit or loss if they
are held for trading or designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial instruments
are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such investments
and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value. Upon initial
recognition, attributabie transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and
changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivabies:

i.oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments, that are not quoted in an active market, and that the Group does not intend to
self immediately or in the near term.

Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except when the Group chooses to designate the loans and receivables as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Resale and repurchase agreements:

Transactions invelving purchases of securifies under resale agreements (‘resale
agreements’ or ‘reverse repos’) or sales of securities under repurchase agreements
{‘repurchase agreements’ or ‘repos’) are accounted for as short-term collateralized
lending and borrowing, respectively. Accordingly, securities soid under repurchase
agreements remain on the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance
with their original measurement principles. The proceeds of sale are reported as
liabilities and are carried at amortised cost, Securities purchased under resale agreements
are reported not as purchases of the securities, but as receivables and are carried in the
statement of financial position at amortised cost. It is the policy of the Group to obtain
possession of collateral with a market value in excess of the principal amount loaned
under resale agreements,

The difference between the purchase cost and the resale consideration, in the case of
resale agreements, is recognised as interest income, while the difference between the
proceeds of sale and repurchase cost, in the case of repurchase agreements, is recognised
as interest expense, Interest income and expense are recognized on the effective interest
basis.
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3

Significant accounting policies {cont’d)

(¢}

N

(g)

(h)

Loans and notes receivable and other receivables:

Loans and notes receivable and other receivables are stated at amertised cost less
impairment provisions.

Accounts payable:
Accounts payable are stated at their amortised cost.
Interest-bearing borrowings:

Interest-bearing borrowings, other than repos, which are described in [note 3(d)], are
recognised initially at fair value less atiributable transaction costs. Subsequent fo initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised costs, with any difference
between cost and redemption being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings on an effective yieid basis.

Property, plant and equipment:
iy Cost:

ftems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. The
cost of replacing part of an {tem of property, piant and equipment 1§ recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied in the part will flow fo the Group and its cost can be reliably measured.

(i} Depreciation:

The cost of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis at annual
rates estimated to write down the assets to their residual values over their expected
usefirl Hives. The depreciation rates are as follows:

Computers 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%
Leasehold improvernents 10%
Motor vehicles 20%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each
reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

March 31. 2013

3.  Significant accounting policies {cont’d)

(i} Intangible assets:

@

(i)

Computer software:

Computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is charged on the straight-line basis at annual rates estimated
to write down the asset to its residual value over their expected vseful life of 7
years from the date it is available for use.

Goodwill:

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
labilities of the acquiree. When the excess is negative (negative goodwill), it is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Goodwill is measured at cost less
accumuiated impairment losses.

(j}  Foreign currency iranslation:

0]

(ii}

Transactions and balances:

Foreign eurrency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the transiation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencics are recognised in
the profit or loss. These rates represent the weighted average rates at which the
Group frades in foreign currency.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available for sale are analyzed between translation differences
resylting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in
fair value reserve,

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and presented in the fair value reserve in stockholders’ equity.

Foreign operations:

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into US$ at the spot
exchange rate at the reporting date. The income and expenses of the foreign
operations are translated into US$ at the spot exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions (for practical purposes an average is used). Foreign currency differences
on the franslation of foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive
income and inciuded in foreign exchange translation reserve.
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3, Significant accounting policies {cont’d)

(k) Share capital:

0

The Group classifies capital instruments as financial lHabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instrument. ln the case of
its preference share capital, it is classified as:

(i}  equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Group’s option, and any
dividends are discretionary; in such a case, dividends thereon are recognised as
distributions within equity;

(i} liability if it is redeemable on a specific date or at the option of the stockholders, or
if dividends are not discretionary; in such a case dividends thereon are recognised
as interest in profit or loss,

The Group's preference shares bear contractual entitiements to dividends that are
cumulative, and not at the discretion of the directors. Accordingly, they are presented as
a financial liability.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted
frorn the initial measurement of the equity instruments.

Income tax:

Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

{i) Current income tax:

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
period, using tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to income
tax payable in respect of previous years,

(ify Deferred income tax:

Deferred income fax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes, Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based
on laws that have been enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, Deferred
tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised,
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3.

Sienificant accounting pelicies {cont’d)

(m)

impairment:

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are reviewed af each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Any
cumulative impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale investment recognised
previously in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss even though the financial asset has
not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or
loss is the difference between the acquisifion cost and current fair value less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

(i  Calculation of recoverable amount:

The recoverable amount of the Group’s investment securities classified as loans
and receivables and other receivables is caloulated as the present value of expected
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective inierest rate inherent in the
asset. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less cost to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessmernts of the time value of money and the risks speeific fo the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverabie amount is determined for the cash-generating unif to which the asset
belongs.

(i} Reversals of impairment:

An impairment loss in respect of a receivable is reversed if the subsequent increase
in recoverable amount can be related obiectively to an event ocourring after the
impairment loss was recognised,

An impairment loss in respect of an investment in an equity instrument classified
as available for sale is not reversed through profit or loss, butf through other
comprehensive income. If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be obiectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment
loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in the profit or
loss.

In respect of other assefs, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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3. Significant accounting policies {cont’d)

()

{0)

(r)

(@

)

investment in subgidiaries
Invesiment in subsidiaries g carried at cost.

Interest income:

Interest ingome is recognised in profit or loss for all interest-earning instruments on the
accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial asset to its carrying amount. The effective interest rate is established on initial
recognition of the financial asset and is not revised subsequently. Interest income
includes coupons earned on fixed income investments, accretion of discount on treasury
hills and other discounted instruments, and amortisation of premium on instruments
hought at a4 premium,

Interest expense:

Interest expensc is recognised in profit or loss on the accrual basis using the effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to its carrying
amount, The effective interest rate is cstablished on initial recognition of the financial
liability and not revised subsequently. Interest expense includes coupons paid on fixed
rate liabilities and accretion of discount or amertization of premium on instruments
issued at other than par.

Fee and commission income:

Fee and commission income are recognised on the accrual basis when the service has been
provided. Fees and commissions arising from negotiating or participating in the
negotiation of a transaction for a third party are recognised on completion of the underlying
transaction, Portfolic and other management advisory and service fees are recognised
based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a time-apportionate basis. Asset
management fees related to investment funds are recognised rateably over the period in
which the service is provided. Performance linked fees or fee components are recognised
when the performance criteria are fulfilied.

Borrowings:

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost and any difference between net
proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Investment property:

Investment property, comprising residential apartments, are held for long-term rental
yields and capital gain.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs. The
carrying amouns includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at
the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met, and exclades the costs of
day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value.
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3.

Sionificant accounting policies (cont’d)

{s) Investmeni property (cont’d):

24

Fair value is determined every three years by an independent registered valuer, and in
cach of the two intervening years by the directors. Fair value is based on current prices in
an active market for similar properties in the same location and conditien. Any gain or

loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss,

Resale agreements

The company purchases government and corporate securities and agrees to resel! them at a

specified date at a specified price.

Resale agreements result in credit exposure, in that the counterparty to the transaction may be
At the reporting date, the fair value of the
underlying securities held for resale agreements was $2,023,000 (2012: $11,027,000; for the

unable to fulfill its coniractual obligations.

Group and $1,411,000 (2012: $406,000) for the Company.

Investment securities

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or Joss

Quoted equities

PPN warrant asset
Foreign currency forward
Foreign currency option

Available-for-sale securities
L.ocal eguities
Global equities
Global bonds
Mutual funds
Corporate bonds
Credit linked notes
Certificates of deposit

Loans and receivabies
Government of Jamaica securities
Fixed deposits
Corporate bonds

{iroup
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
i3 i3
149 220
5 04
- 29
67 371
- 27
943 1,432
34,145 47,867
28,208 31,643
44,415 12,205
- 1.302
107,711 93.876
4,302 6,786
2,150 .
45 -
6,786

Company
20613 2012
$080 $:000
P 29
@ 25
- 27
943 1,432
12,928 17,413
28,208 31,643
43,503 12,205
867 751
86,389 63,471
86.389 63,500
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6. F.oans receivable

Margin loans [see (a) below]

Hire parchase loans
Carporate notes
QOther loans

(a)

(b}

25

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
$°000 $°G60 $°000 70060
7,731 13,792 ~ -
584 687 - -
6,741 14,857 3,228 5,682
1,622 - - B

Margin loans receivable represent advances made by the Group to facilitate the purchase of
securities by its clients. The securities purchased are pledged as collateral for the outstanding

advances. Certain of these securities have been re-pledged by the Group (see note 15},

At the reporting date, the fair value of the collateral pledged by the clients and re-pledged by
the Group was $33,467,000 (2012: $27,612,600).

Loans receivable are due, from the reporting date, as follows:

Margin loans

Hire purchase loans
Corporate notes
Other loans

Margin loans
Hire purchase ioans
Corporate notes

Corporate notes

Group
2013
Within 312 1-5 Over
3 monihs months years 3 years Total
1,144 722 - 5,865 7,731
584 - - 584
930 2,477 3,334 - 6,741
e 1.622 — e 1022
2,658 4,221 Hamad 3.865 16,078
Group
2012
Within 312 I-5 Over
3 months manths years 5 years Total
- 298 - 13,494 13,792
671 16 - " 687
1.377 3.181 4,299 " 19,857
PRV 3,493 4,292 13,494 VAL
Compsany
2013
Within 3-12 i3
3 months  months years Total
- 477 4,751 RedS
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6. Loansreceivable (cont’d)

(b)

Corpozate notes

(¢}

Impairment fosses:

26

L.oans receivable are due, from the reporting date as follows (cont’dh

Company
2012
Within 3.12 1-5
3 months  months years fotal
1377 - 4,300 5,682

The aging of hire purchase and other loans, net of allowance for impairment losses, is as

follows:

Not past due and not impaired

Past due and not impaired

More than 90 days past and
impaired

interest receivable

(d)

impatrment iosses:

Balance at the beginning of the vear

lmpairment losses recognized
Provision nio longer required

Balance at the end of the year

Other assets

Jamaica Stock Exchange seat Isee (a}]

Due from clients

Interest receivable

Other [see {b)}

Other receivables acquired on purchase
of subsidiary

Less allowance for impairment {see (¢)]

Groun Group
2013 2012
Allowance Allowance
for for
Gross irpatrment Gress  impairment
607 - 363 4
981 - 346 30
52 49 - .
13 e 2 e
1655 42 7 21 -1
Croup
2013 2012
$000 $000
34 -
41 34
(_26) -
Ciroun Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $000 $000 £000
57} - - -
i2l 1,664 - 1,536
1,255 1,377 60 599
1,663 rityi G232 163
- 1060 « -
3,612 3,848 1,882 2,298
{ 151} {129 { 637 @
2,861 3718 1.248 2,208
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7. Qther receivables (cont’ d)

(a)

(b)

(¢}

Jamaica Stock Exchange seat

This represents one qualifying share held in Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (*JSE’), at
cost. The qualifying share entities the subsidiary to operate as a broker/dealer and be a
member of the Council of JSE, Under ifs constitotion, members of ISE are not entitled fo
dividends from JSE, and are not entitied fo is residual assets or the assets of the
Compensation Fund, upon a winding up or liquidation, as the assets would be required to
be used for development of the securities markst in Jamaica.

included in this amount is $154,000 expended on the planning for the possibie
construction of investment property

Allowance for impairment is made in respect of the following:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
$060 $°000 £'000 3006
Due from clients 112 127 s .
Other 639 — 637 S

The movement in the allowance for impairment during the year was as follows:

Balance at beginning of year i29 1G1 - -
impairment losses recognized 637 28 637 -
Foreign exchange gain (15 - = =
Balance at end of year 151 129 637 e

8. Investment in subsidiary

Company
2013 2012
3600 5000
Ordinary shares 17470 17,470
(iy  This represents 100% of the voting equity issued by the subsidiaries {note 1).
(iiy On February 29, 2012, Proven Investments Limited acquired the entire issued share

capital of Asset Management Company Limited
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8. Iavestment in subsidiary {cont’d)

(i) (Cont’d)

Identifiable assefs acquired and liabilities assumed

$000
Cash and cash equivalents 42
Accounts receivable H
Hire and non-hire purchase receivables 657
Other receivables 190
Property, plant and equipment N
Accounts payable ( 50)
[.oan payable {280)
Notes payable . {1763
Purchased geodwill
Goodwill was recognised as a result of the acquisition, as follows:

$000
Total consideration transferred 393
Less; Fair value of identifiable net assefs (384)
Goodwill on purchase of subsidiary 2

(iii} The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of $33,000 for external legal fees, stamp
duty and due diligence. These costs have been included in other operating expenses in
the Group's statement of comprehensive income,

g, Investment property

2013 2012

$000 £000
Purchase price 551 551
Transaction cosis 24

Fair value adjustment 210
Translation adjustment

-
)
=
p—
o] )
B lae
: ain b
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March 31, 2013

10.

Investiment property {cont d}

The fair value of investment properties as at the reporting date is based on estimates of open
market value, which may be defined as the best price at which an interest in a property might
reasonably be expected to be sold by private treaty at the date of valuation, assuming:

a wilking seiler;
- @ willing buyer;

- 1 reasonable period in which to negotiate a sale, taking into account the nature of the
property and state of the market;

- values are expected to remain stable throughout the period of market exposure and disposal
by way of sale;

- the property will be freely exposed to the market;

- that no account has been taken of any possible additional bid/s reflecting any premium in
price which might be forth-coming from a potential purchaser with a special interest in
acquiring the premises; and

- that the subject premises, in its current zoned use class, can be sold, exchanged, transferred,
let, morigaged or used for any other economic activity, within its land use class, in the open
market.

Fair value was determined by the directors on this basis. The next independent professional
vatuation will be obtained as of March 31, 2015 [see note 3{(1)].

Intangible asset

This represents the carrying value of acquired computer software, as follows:

Group
$'000
Cost:
March 31, 2011 it
Additions _44
March 31,2012 54
Additions 37
Reclassified o property, plant and equipment { 20y
Transiation adiustment (19
March 31, 2013 6l
Amertisation:
March 31, 2011 |
Amortisation 12
March 31, 2012 i3
Amortisation 15
Reciassified to property, plant and equipment { 4
Transiation adjustment _ 6
March 31, 2013 0

Net book values:
March 31, 2013

sl
March 31, 2612 43
March 31, 2011 9
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11.  Property, plant and equipment

Cost:
March 31, 2011
Additions
Acquired through business
acquisition
Disposals
Translation adjustment

March 31,2012

Additions

Disposals

Reclassificd from intangible
asset

Translation adjustment

March 31, 2013

Depreciation:
March 31, 2011
Charge for the year
Acquired through business
acquisition
{isposals
Translation adjustment

March 31, 2012

Charge for the year

Disposals

Reclagsified from intangible
asset

‘Transiation adjustment

March 31, 2013

Net book values:
March 31, 2013

March 31,2012
March 31, 2611

12. Repurchase agreemenis

Group
Furnljure
i.easchold fixtures and Muotor Computer
improvement equipment vehicle equipment Total
§7000 $000 $000 $°000 000
7 264 40 43 374
37 4 17 58
. 13 - 93 108
- (14 { 25) { 46} { 8%)
_1 8 . 3} )
45 261 14 126 446
4 4 - 10 i8
" { 2 - = { 2
- - - 20 20
(.6 {36} () (_48) {_9%)
A3 227 -2 168 387
i 21 il 13 46
3 32 i4 15 64
. 1 " i8 19
. . { 25) - ( 25)
N (3 s (.2 _ 5
4 51 - 44 95
5 3 8 29 73
- (B " = {D
w o . 4 4
D (.14 (3} 16 {_36)
....... 8 57 — _61 139

The Group sells Government and corporate securities and agrees to repurchase them on a

specified date and at a specified price (repurchase agreements),

Denominated in Jamatca dollars

Denominated in United States doliars

Denominated in Pounds Sterling

Group (ompany
2013 20812 2013 2012
$000 $000 $7000 000
18,290 - "
12,922 4955 -
)38 - =2
31,370 4,955 e
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i3,

Credit Hnked notes

Credit linked notes (“CLNs>) are structured notes or collateralised debt obligations, which are
issued by the Group. The performance of the CLNs is contingent on the performance of a
specified asset, such as a loan, bond or other asset. The credit risk and cash flow characteristics
resembie those of the underlying assei. CLNs essentially transfer the credit risk of the asset
specified in the note from the issuer to the investors in the notes,

Owed o related parties

Group Company
2013 2012 2613 2021
$000 $°000 $000 $°006
Subsidiary - - 73 -
Dividend payable 281 - 281 166
Acecrved management fees 48 - 48 -
Other = 104 —= .
Notes pavabig
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
37000 5060 $°600 600
Structured notes [See ()] 17,978 - 17,966 7,131
Equity-linked notes [See (i1} 6,763 15,815 6,205 6,735
Margin loans payable [See (3i1)] 38.85¢ 38.357 31,127 24,428

(1)  Structured notes represent short to medium-term debt obligations issued by the Group.
The notes are secured by a basket of securities and typicaily have fixed quarterly coupon
paymenis, with 2 bullet payment of principal due at maturity,

{ii} Equity-linked notes are medium-term debt instruments issued by the Group, which pay a
return that is linked to the Group’s financial performance, These instruments pay a fixed
quarterly coupon, with an annual bonus interest payment that is linked to the return on
equity of the Group,

(iii) Margin loans payable represent shori-term debt facilities provided by brokerage firms to
the Group and used by the Group to:

» acquire securities on its own account. The facilities are collateralised by the
securities held with the brokerage firms, with the proceeds being used by the Group
to purchase additional securities;

. fund faciiities offered to its clients, The clients have agreed with the Group that the
securities purchased may be re-pledged or otherwise offered by the Group as
collateral for the margin facility extended to the Group by the brokerage firm,
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16. Preference shares

Group and Company

5000 2013 2812
$000 $060
Managers’ preference shares {See (a)) i 1
8% Cumulative redeemable preference shares
ISec {b) below and note 18]
At beginning of year 200,000 11,239
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation I -
At end of year 200,000 11,239
11,240

{b)

The terms and conditions of the manager’s preference shares include the following:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the manager’s preference shares shall rank parf passu as between and among
themselves;

each manager’s preference share is entitled to a cumulative annual preference
dividend in the sum which is equal to:

(1) 25% of the profits and gains of the Company in each financial year in excess of
the Annua! Earnings Hurdle (computed in accordance with the formula set out
in the terms and conditions of issue) for such financial year, divided by

(2) the number of manager’s preference shares in issue when the said cumulative
annual preference dividend is paid; and for this purpose the Annual Earnings
Hurdie shall be the amount which resuits when the hurdle rate is applied to the
average equity of the Company during such financial year.

Apart from the right to the cumulative annual preference dividend, the manager’s
preference shares have no ecenomic rights or entitlerents save for the right on &
winding up to the repayment of the capital paid thereon on a parf passu basis with
the capital paid on the ordinary shares,

Each manager's preference share has votes attaching to it that are a multiple of the
votes attaching to each ordinary share on all resolutions and decisions at a general
meeting, such that the preference share votes will be at least equal to the votes of
the ordinary shares, except on any resolution intended to vary the formula for
computing the dividend payable to the preference shareholders, in which case each
manager’s preference share is entitied to one vote

The terms and conditions of the 8% Cumulative redeemable preference shares, include
the following:

(i)

(it)

The right to a preferential dividend at the agreed annual rate, payable out of the
profits of the Company, calculated on the capital paid up on the preference stock
units, and any dividend not paid shall accumulate untii paid;

The right to preferential repayment of paid-up preference capital, and any arrears of
preference dividend upon the winding up or the Company or other return of capital;
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16,

17.

(b} ‘The terms and conditions of the 8% Cumulative redeemable preference shares, include
the following {cont’d):

(i) No right to vote at any general meeting of the Company except where the dividend
on the preference stock units are past due more than twelve months, and/or the
notice for the redemption of preference stock units is past due and/or a resclution to
wind up the company has been passed;

{(iv) The Company may redeem all or any of the preference stock units on or before
December 23, 2016 at J$5.00 each.

‘The dividend on both classes of preference shares is recorded as interest expense in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Deferrad tax assets/(Habilities)

Group
Asset Eiabilities Net
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$60G 3080 $ooc $000 $000 5000
Dieferred tax liability is attributable
to the following:
Property, plant and equipment - - {31} { 3% { 31} { 35)
Other receivables - - {187} {2283 1073 (228}
nrealised foreign exchange gains - {230} {106} (238} {106}
Available-for-sale investment securities 25 129 - - 25 129
Other liabilities 1% 29 - - 119 29
Cther e =l e e 16 —_
160 138 (368) (369 (208) (2LL}
Movement in temporary differences during the year:
Group
2013 2012
$006 $000
Net deferred tax liability at the beginning of the year 2iD {661)
Recognised in profit or loss:
Property, plant and equiprent { b { 18)
Other receivabies 163 48
Unrealised foreign exchange gains (180) 177
Other ligbilities 4 ( 92)
Other 30 (32
( 24) 83
Recognised in equity:
Available-for-sale investment securities - 336
Translation adjustment 27 1Y
27 367

Net deferred tax liability at the end of the year (208) (Z1D)
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18,

i9.

20.

Share capital
2013 2012
$7000 $°000
Authorised:
2,999,990,000 Ordinary shares, par value US$0.01 each 29,999 500 29,996,900
10,000 Manager's Preference Shares, par vaiue US$0.01 each 100 100
300,000,000 8% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares, par value US$0.0] each 3,000,000 3.000.660
33,000,000
2013 2012
$°000 £:000
Issued and fully paid:
294,951,884 Ordinary shares 29,657 29,657
10,000 Manager’s Preference Shares i i
200,066,000 8% Cumulative Redeemabie
Preference Shares 9921 11,239
39,579 40,897
Less: Preference shares reclassified to Hability (see note 16) (9922 (11,240}
29,657 292,657

By 2 resolution passed on November 30, 2011, the Company increased its authorized share
capital from (i) 2,999,990,000 ordinary shares having a par value of US$ 0,01 each and {ii}
10,000 preference stock units with a par value of USS 0.0 each, by the creation of an
additional 308,000,000 fixed rate Cumulative Redeemable preference shares having a par value
of US$0.01.

On December 23, 2011, the Company issued 200,000,000 of the newly created cumulative
redeemable 8% preference shares at a fixed price of J$3 per share, Dividend is payable at 8%
per annum quarterly on the 23" day of March, June, September and December.

The holders of the ordinary shares are entitled fo receive dividends from time fo time, and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Fair value reserve

‘This represents the cumulative net unrealised gains/(losses) in fair value, net of taxation, on the
revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities.

Foreign exchange translation rgserve

The transiation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the transiation
of the financial statements of foreign operations as well as from the translation of liabiiities that
hedge the Company’s net investment in foreign operations.
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21, Netinterest income

Interest income:
BOJ certificates of deposit
GOJ benchmark investment notes
GOJ investment bonds
GO local registered stock
Regional and corporate bonds
Global bonds
Resale agreements
Corporate fiote
Margin loans receivable
Other Ioans receivable
Credit-linked notes
Other

interest expense:
Interest on margins
Repurchase agreements
Short-term loans
Credit-linked notes
Notes payable
Preference shares
Other

272, Net fair value adjustments and realised gains

Fair value gains on fixed income securities
Fair value gains on equity securities
Gains/(losses) on currency trading

Groun
2013 2012
$000 8060
2 5
1,538 1,903
- 175
3 .
986 1,609
949 1,191
193 196
2,665 1,613
40 360
390 110
B85 (__86)
7361 7076
922 637
1,374 1,938
- 49
116 299
G694 588
870 249
196 219
4474 3.979
2,887
Group
2013 2012
$ 0060 37060
1,434 1,809
2,697 1,370
20 31
4.13). 3310

33

Company
2013 2012
$°000 $7000

986 1,609
40 46
2,459 527
40 267
. 116

19 332

11 —

3,622 2.894
701 541
7 11

. 49

. 16
914 518
870 24%
43 219
2.535 1,603
1,087 1,291

Company
2013 2012
$°000 $£600
379 942
2,696 1,218

17 {_3%
2.092 2,121
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25. Taxation

37

(a) The tax charge for income tax is computed at 1%, 25% and 33V4% of profit for the year
as adjusted for tax purposes, and 15 made up as follows:

(1)  Currenttax charge:
Charge/(credit) on current period’s profits:
income tax at 1%
Income tax at 33%%
Income lax at 25%

{1y  Deferred tax credit:
Origination and reversal of
temposary differences

(iH) Prior year undes/(over) provision

Total income lax charge

(b} Reconciliation of effective fax rate:

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $°000 $7000 §00¢
46 26 46 26

303 287 o -
- . e -
347 313 45 26

24 { 83) > .
A2 (9% T (.80
390 133 . (2D

The tax rate for two of the subsidiaries is 25% and 33%% of profit before income tax
adjusted for tax purposes, while the tax rate for the Company is 1% of profits. The actual

charge for the period is as follows:

Surplus before taxation

Computed “expected” tax expense at 1%
Computed “expected” tax expense at 25%
Computed “expected” tax expense at 334%

Difference between profits for financial
staternents and tax reposting purposes on -
Depreciation charge and capital
allowances
Unrealised foreign exchange loss
Interest receivabie
Income exempt from income tax
Disailowed expenses
Other

Actual fax expense/(eredit)

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
$°000 $000 $ 600 $:600
4.243 2421 3,144 4513

45 34 31 45
(2 - - -
A4 (378 = -

497 { 344) 3 45
{ 1} 24 “ -

54 { 126} i3 -
{ {49 @ -
{ 144) {80 - ( 29
{21 192 12 5
—b Al (i) (97
S N KX | A0 {—iY
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26. Related party fransactions

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

{1} A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that
person:

M
(1))

(i)

has control or joint controi over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is & member of the key managemeni personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group,

{2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the foliowing conditions applies:

(W

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

v

(vi)
(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group {which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both eatities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entify 15 an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entify related to the Group.

The entity is controlled, or jointly controiled by a person identified in (1}.
A person identified in (1){i) has significant influence over the entity or is a

member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Inciuded in these financial statements are the following transactions and balances with related

parties:

{a) The Group has a related party relationship with its subsidiary, associates and with its
directors and executive officers in the ordinary course of business.
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26. Related party transactions {cont’d)

(b

(¢}

(d)

{e)

The CGroup has engaged a related party, Proven Management Limited, to provide
investment management services in refation to financial instruments held in a number of
funds, for a fee. The fee is charged at 2% of the Company’s Average Net Asset Value in
the financial year,

Group and Company

2013 2012
000 $000
investment management fees paid for
the year 646 &7%
Fees accrued at end of year .48 -
688 671

Key management compensation for the year, included in staff costs (note 24), is as
follows:

Croup Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
$600 $000 $'066  $'00C
Staff costs 198 25 i 23

The statement of financial position includes balances, arising in the ordinary course of
business, with iis related parties, as follows:

Directors Direclors
and key and key
Subsidiary management Subsidiary  management

2013 2013 2012 2812

$000 $000 $000 $000
lLoans receivable - “ - 36
Other receivables - - 226 173
Repurchase agreements 1,491 344 129 -
Credit-linked notes 912 751 - -

Other liabifities ekl

TR

The statement of comprehensive income includes the following income earned from, and
expenses incorred in, transactions with related parties:

2013 2012
$0060 $'000
Proven Wealth Limited
Dividend income . 2,800
interest income 79 349
Proven Management Limited
[3ividends paid 783 392
Dividends acerued at end of year _ 281 146

Management fees 688 571
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26.

27

Related party transactions {cont’d)

0

Other amounts with related parties are disclosed in note 15.

Financial risk management

(a)

{b)

Intreduction and overview:

By its natare, the Group’s activities are principally related to the use of financial
instruments, The Group’s activities therefore expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other operational risk. Market risk includes
currency risk, interest rate and price risk. The Group's aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits
by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Group reguiarly reviews its
risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and
emerging best practice,

The Board of Directors is uitimately responsibie for the establishment and oversight of
the Group's risk management framework. The Board has established committees for
managing and monitoring risks, as follows:

(i) Investment Management Committee
(i) Audit Committee

The Investment Management Committee oversees how management monitors
compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

The Group accepts investments from customers at both fixed and {loating rates and for
various periods and seeks to earn above average interest margins by investing these funds
in high guality assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-
term funds and investing for longer periods at higher rates while maintaining sufficient
liguidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions to take advantage
of short-term market movements in bond prices and in foreign exchange and interest
rates. To manage the associated risks, trading limits are placed on the level of exposure
that can be taken,

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of default by an obligor, This risk is managed primarily by reviews
of the financia! status of each obligor. The primary concentration of the Group's credit
risks relates to invesiments in government securities, With the exception of investments
in government securities and government-backed securities, there are no significant
concentrations of credit risk,
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27. Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (cont’d):
(i) Maximum exposure to credit risk:
The maximum credit exposure, the total amount of foss the Group would suffer if
every counterparty to the Group’s financial assets were to default at once, is
represented by the carrying amount of financial assets exposed to credit risk.
The Group manages the credit risk on items exposed to such risk as follows:

o (ash and cash equivalents

These are held with reputable financial institutions. Collateral is not required
for such accounts as management regards the instifutions as strong,

» Resale agreements
Collateral is held for all resale agreements.

¢ Investment securities
in relation to its holding of vestment securities, the Group manages the level
of risk it undertakes by investing substantially in short-term Government of
Jamatica debt securities; such securities are generally unsecured. Management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

*  Accounts receivable

Exposure to credit risk is managed by regular analysis of the ability of the
customers and other counter parties to meet repayment obligations.

» L.o0ans receivable

The Group’s policy requires that proposed significant leans are approved by
the Investment Committee prior to disbursemeni, with the Committee
thereafter monitoring the performance of the credit

(i) Concentration of credit risk:
There is significant concentration of credit risk in that the Group helds significant

amourits of debt securities issued by Government of Jamaica and Bank of Jamaica.
There is no other significant concentration of credit
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217.

Financial risk management {cont’d)

{by Credit risk (cont’d}:

)

(ili} Impairment:

The financial assets which were considered impaired at the reporting date are set
out in notes 7 and 8.

During the period, there was no change in the nature of the Group’s sxposure to credit
risk or to the manner in which it measures and manages the rigk.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
from its financial Habilities. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to seli a financial
asset quickly at, or close to, its fair value. The Group’s approach fo managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when duoe under both normal and stressed conditions. Prudent liquidity risk management
procedures which the Group uses include maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis,

(i} Liquidity risk management:

The Group's liquidity management process, as carried out within the Group and
monitored by the Investment Management Committee, includes:

{i}y Monitoring future cash flows and liguidity on a daily basis. This incorporates
an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade
coliateral which could be used to secure funding if required;

(i} Maintaining a portfolic of highly marketable and diverse assets that can
easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interraption fo cash
fiows;

(iii} Optimising cash returas on investment;

(iv} Monitoring liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements. The
most important of these is to maintain limits on the ratio of net lquid assets
to cusiomer liabilities; and

{v} Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities. Monitoring and
reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the
next day, week and month, respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of the
contractual maturity of the financial labilities and the expected collection
date of the financial assets.

The table below presents the undiscounted cash flows payable (both interest and
principal cash flows) based on contractual repayment obligations. The tables also
reflect the expected maturities of the Group's liabilities at the reporting date.
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27. Financial risk management {cont’d)

()  Liquidity risk {(conf’d)
()  Liquidity risk management (cont’d}:

Group
2813
No
366 days specific Total
G630 3150 91.383 1o Over 5 maturity  contractual Camying
days  davs  davs Svears years  date outfiow  amount
000 POo00 $O00 3000 $000 $7000 000 3000
Liabilitics
Repurchase agresments 3473 12685 10,307 i 5,048 . 32,390 31,370
Credit linked notes - - 1,662 - - - 1,662 1,573
Ovwed to refated panty - - . . - 329 329 338
Notes payable 31,146 372 19065 070 5917 . 64,570 63,600
Preference shares - 200 612 12144 B | 12,957 9522
Other Habilities 540 467 179 4 . e _bgoo 1,200
Tota! financial liabilitics 13724 31B2s 21205 10968 430 113108 107,09
2012
No
366 days specific Total

030 3180 9136 to Over 5 maturity  contractual  Carrying

doys days  davs Sygais yeas  date cutflow  amount
$000  $000  $000  $°000  $'000 $000 $ 000 $000

Linbitities

Barpk overdraft 223 - . - - - 223 223
Repurchase agreements R5604 1244F 14399 - - - 35,244 35344
Owed to related party . " . - " 164 104 104
Notes payable 24,476 P43 1831 14929 13174 . 55,155 54,172
Preference shares . 230 489 14,681 - i 15,603 11,240
Other linbilities . - - - - 1,274 1,274 1,274
Credit Ynked notes 2 5980 339 - - - 4398 _ 4370
Totat financial Habilities 33205 13794 20313 o612 13776 1378 LiZQRL 106797
Company
2813
HNo
366 days specific Total

0-36  31.90 91363 1o Over 5 maturity  centraciual  Camying

days  days  days Syews years  date outflow  amgunt

Po00 $000 000 $O000 000 $T000 300 $000

Linbilitios
Repurchase apreemenis " . 1 587 5,048 - 5116 4,955
Cwed to related party . " - . . 442 402 462
Notes payable 31,146 28 17,662 7,233 - - 56,269 55,298
Preference shares . 200 612 12,144 - { 12,957 2,922
Other liabilities . - T L S ST I 1 458
Total financial HabilRies 35,604 428 {#£385 19934 3048 403 15,702 1L032
2012
Mo
366 days specifie Todal

030 31.90 91.363 o Over 5 maturity  contractual Carrying
days days days  Syears  years date outflow amount
$H00 $000  FO00 PO00 000 B006 5000 2000

Liabitities
Bank overdraft 223 - B - - . 223 223
Owed to related party B . . . . 106 106 |06
Notes payable 24,476 143 1,831 12827 . - 39,217 38,294
Preference shawes " 230 i 15,603 FE,240
Other fiabilities 428 - - 428 428
Croditjiinked notes ... 2 ) i 696 _..be8

Totat fnancint Habilities 25,129 375

7 33 3490



44

PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
March 31, 2013

7.

Financial risk management {cont’d)

(&)

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or fufure cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether caused by factors specific
to the individual security or its issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the
market. These arise mainly from changes in interest rate, foreign currency rates and
equity prices and will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. Market risk is monitered by the Investment Management Committee which
carries out extensive research and monitors the price movement of financial assets on the
local and international markets. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity
analysis.

‘There has been no major change to the nature of the Group's exposure to market risks or
the manner in which it measures and manages the risk.

(iy  Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the rigk that the market value of, or the cash fiows from,
financial instruments will vary because of exchange rate fluctuations. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk due to fluctuations in exchange rates on
transactions and balances that are deneminated in currencies other than the
functional currency. The main currencies giving rise to this risk are the Jamaica
dollar (J$), Euro (€) and Trinidad and Tobago (TT$)., The Group manages this risk
by matching foreign currency assets with foreign currency liabilities, to the extent
practicable. The net foreign currency exposure is kept to the targeted levels by
buying or seliing currencies at spot rates when necessary to address imbalances. At
the reporting date, exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

Group
2013
J$ anp uss Othes
$000 87000 000 8000
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3,981 2 8,547 13
Resale agreements ” ii3 578 -
Investment securities - - 11,608 338
L.oans receivable 375,000 - 9,732 -
Other 5,702 2,834 349 16,901
384 683 2.969 30214 17.244
Liabilities
1.0ans payable - - 7,732 -
Repurchase agreements - 103 8,008 -
Credit-linked notes - - 1,708 -
Owed to related parties 43,122 - - -
Notes payable 513,260 - 128 -
Preference shares 083,643 . - "
Other 5382 - .28 15
1.545.400 17.283 15
Net position (1,160,726} 12931 17,228
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27,  Financial risk management {cont’d)
(¢} Market risk {cont’d):
(i) Currency risk {cont’d):

Group

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis
Resale agreements
Investment securiiies
l.cans receivabie
Other

Liabilities
L.oans payable
Repurchase agreements
Credit-linked notes
Notes payable
Prefergnce shares
Cther

Net position

Company

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Reszle agreements

1.0ans receivable
Investment securities

Due from related party
Other

Liabilities

Owed to related parties
Notes payable
Preference shares
Other

Net position

435

2012

i3 GBP  I1% Uss Qiher
400 000  $000 SG60 $G0G
1,003 6 682 1,102 24

= 1M 5 100 -
2,342 = @ 11 4,828

495,000 = = 16,792 =
32,247 61 16,89 230 239
530,592 238 17,578 18,235 5,061

= - = 13,776 -

= 125 = 9,702 -

- - - 2.99% -
234,386 - - 1,383 -
983,645 - - - -

. - w16 an &
1,218.034 126 (18 27,828 §
(_.687,442) 112 17594 9.593 5,085
2013 2012
Qiher
JE000 8000 000
3,981 1,003 -
124,908 30,000 -
514,580 495,000 -
- 2,342 -
15,149 - -
_.5.398 32,247 2.000
666,936 560,592 2,600
43,122 - -
513,260 234,389 -
683,645 083,645 -
5,382 - -
1,545,469 1.218.034 -
{ B78.473) (65744 2,000
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27.  Financial risk management {cont’d)

(d
()
()

Market risk (cont’d):

Currency risk (cont’d):
Sensitivity to exchange rate movements.

The following indicates the sensitivity to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates of the group’s profit and shareholders’ equity. The analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

(iroup Company
% thange in Bffect Lffecl on Effect Effect on
crITensy on comprehensive on comprehbensive
rate profit income profit ingome
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$'000 $ 000 3060 $°000
Currency.
IMD 1% Revaluation ( 118} - { 8% -
GBP 1% Revaluation 44 " - .
LISD {% Revaluation 12,725 37 - -
Gther 1% Revaluation YA . - -
Groun Company
% change in Effect Effact on Effect Effect on
CHFTEncY on comprehensive on comprehensive
raie profil mcome profit income
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$'000 5006 $° 000 $7066
Carrency:
IMD 10% Devakaation { 1179 - { 992} -
GBP 13% Devaluation {435 - - -
USD 10% Devaluation (127,255} 320 - -
her 14% Devaluation (.. 2.208) - P —
Group Company.
% change in Effect Effect on Effect Effect on
CUrteney on comprehensive on comprehensive
rale profit income profit income
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
$7060 066 3060 5060
Currency:
IV 1% Revaluation ( 1533 145 {77 -
GBP 1% Revaluation 2 - - -
T §% Revaluation 1,129 “ - =
LSS 1% Revaluation 9 588 145 - B
Other 1% Revaluation ) “ _26 ——

& devaluation would have had an equal and opposite effect 1o amounts shown above,

(i1}  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates. The Group manages this risk by monitoring
interest rates daily. Even though there are no formally predetermined gap limits,
where possible and to the extent judged appropriate, the maturity profile of its
financial assets is matched by that of Hs financial liabilities; where gaps are
deliberately arranged, management expects that its monitoring will, on a fimely
basis, identify the need 1o take appropriate action to close a gap if it becomes
necessary.
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27

(&) Market risk {cont’d):

(iii)

Interest rate risk (cont’d);

Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed
interest rate instruments expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group’s interest rate risk policy requires it to manage interest rate risk by
maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate instruments. The policy
also requires it to manage the maturities of interest-eaming financial assets and
interest-bearing financial Habilities. The Investments Management Committee sets
limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken,
which is monitored daily by management and reported monthly to the Investment
Management Committee.

The table below summarises exposure to interest rate risk. Included in the tables are
the carrving amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing and maturity dates.

Group
2013
Neon
$-30 31.80 91-36% 3a6days  Overs interest
days davs days e IYeRrs  yeals sensitive ol
£°064 $°000 $°000 $600 000 $000 §000
Assets:
Cash and
cash equivalents “ - - - - 3,558 3,558
Resale
AEFRCMSNIS 478 1215 491 334 - - 2,515
Investment
seCuritios 2,137 4,789 14,489 12,35¢ 54,852 154 85271
Loang receivable 277 1,116 3,964 4,804 5,917 - 16 078
Pug from rehated
pagty - - - - - 25 25
Other - - - 169 33 a4 &06
Totat assets 2897 7,120 F4,944 18,154 o0, 802 4,341 168,253
Liabilities
Repurchase
agreements 16948 6,945 2,]%0 332 4955 - 31,370
Credit. Hnked
notes . 672 o4} - - - 1573
Owed 1o related
parties = @ @ = - 339 329
Ngtes payabie 31,027 - 17602 TA27 12 7,733 63 600
Preference shares - - - 8,921 - i 8922
Other o - - b - 381 381
48,075 7617 20,693 L1380 4,967 8,443 107,175
Interest rate
sensitivity gap (45,180 { 497} { 57493 114 55838 {4102}
Cumulative
interest rate
sensitivity
gap {4318 (4588 (31429) (30655 b8 LLUTE E—
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27.

(d)

Market risk {cont’d):

(iii)

Interest rate risk {cont’d}:

48

212
Non
0-30 3180 91.365% 366 days Ower S nierest
davs davs days tolyvears  vears sensitive Fotal
oo £a00 £000 600 000 £000 $ 400
Assets:
Cash and
cash equivalents - . - - 2,908 2,508
Resale
APTCCTAERES 291 330 261 - - - 882
Irvestment
securities 2215 2,034 7,697 3614 52,219 31,747 99,526
L.oans receivable - 3,548 4,271 4,305 13,212 - 35,336
Other = - - T - 942 842
Total assets 2,506 3.912 12229 7,919 65,43] 35,597 129564
1.iabilities:
Bank overdraft 223 - " - - - 223
Repurvhase
agrecments 8,463 12,372 14,221 288 " . 35344
Credit-Hnked
netes . 974 3,396 - - . 4,376
Onwed to related
pasties - = = = - 184 164
Notes payable 24,428 - 1,492 14,476 - 13,776 54,172
Preference shares - - - 11,235 . 1 11,240
Other z - - - 1,274 1274
33,114 13,346 15,108 26,8503 _—— 15,155 106727
Interest rate
sensitivity gap (30608 (74340  (A880  (US0RM 63431 20442 L2867
Cumuiative
nterest rate
sensiivity
gap GO608y (R4 449y (63006) L2428 24867 e
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27.  Financisl risk management {cont’d)

(&) Market risk (cont’d}

(i)

49

Interest rate risk {cont"d):
Company
2313
Nox
0-30 31.90 91-365 366 days  Over s interest
days days days fo §yeals  years sensitive Total
$°000 F1060 5000 $000 060 £000 $000
Aggets:
Cash and bank - - - - 2,021 2,021
Resale
agreements BE4 427 - - - 1311
Inveskmaan
securities “ . go7 9,992 46,439 57,238
Loans receivable - - 478 4,750 - - 5,228
{3ther assets . - - . - 285 285
Owed by retated
party - z Z o 155 155
‘Total assets 8R4 427 1,285 14,742 46,439 2461 66,238
Liabilities
Repyrchase
SEFECITICRS - - - - 4,955 - 49558
Owed {0 related
parties - . - . 4062 402
Preference share - - 9,921 B i 9,922
(ther liabilites - - - - - 258 238
Notes payable 31927 - 17044 AP . - 55,208
Totat Habifities 33,127 . 17,044 {7.048 4 855 661 70,835
Total interest 1ate
sensitiviey gap  {(30,243) 427 {15759 {2300} 41 484 {_4,597}
Cumutative
interest rate
sensitivity
gap (30243} (29816} (433D (41881 (L6397 {4997 =
2012 -
Non
0-30 31-90 91-365 366 days  Over S interest
davs davs days Wwoyeams  yomrs sexsitive Total
$ $:000 F 000 $060 5000 $000 $000
Assets]
Cash and bank - - 28 28
Rasule
HETEEITEHIS 344 - - - . - 344
{nvestment
securities - 3,403 2187 24,718 - 30,368
{.oans raceivable - 1,377 : 4,335 - - 5682
{nher receivables - - - T - 1.573 1573
Total assets 344 1377 34603 6,492 24778 1,681 37,995
{iabilities
Bank overdraft 223 - - 223
Orwed o velated
pariies . - . - - H¥ 106
Preference sharg - - B - 11,239 ] 11,240
Other Habilitiss - - - . ~139 159
Motes paysble 24,428 e 1.492 12,374 - - 38 204
Total lizbikities 24,651 - 1,492 12374 11,239 208 02z
Total interest mie
sensitivity gap  (24.307) A3n 1811 {.5.882) 13,559 1,335 {12.027%
Cumaiative
interest rati
sensitivity
gap Q4300 @230y QLY @sshly (336D (12030
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27. Financial risk management {cont’d)

{d)
(i)

Market risk {cont’d):

interest rate risk {cont’

dy

50

The table below summarises the effective interest rate by major currencies for

financial instruments at the reporting date,

(iroup Company
2613 2013
i3 {58 (BP furo 1% 144 GBP Euro
% % % % % % % %
Assets
Resale agreements 589 49¢ 280 . 538 P00 - .
investment seourities 7.55 6.96 - 6.83 6350 : -
{.oans receivable - 493 = . 1339 - - -
Liabilities
Hepurchase agreements 4,99 136 - - 228 - -
Notes payable &1t 404 - 6.11 404 - -
Credi-linked notes 6.00 5.50 - - . . . -
Preference shares 1438 o = Py L S M. ==
Group Company
2012 2012
i3 LSy GBP Euro 35 LSS Gip Euro
% L Y% % % % Yo Yo
Assets
Resale agreements 631 - 3.50 - 4.50 - - -
Investment secutitios 841 7.94 . {084 11.00 800 . -
L.oans receivable 1100 350 - . 1000 - -
Other receivables - 108 - - - 7.68 -
Liabilities
Repurchase agreements 561 304 185 - . - -
Notes payable 538 4,37 - 538 417 - -
Crodit tinked notes 6,15 4.83 - " 350
Preference shares 14,50 e e . 1450 e .

Sensitivity fo Interest rate movements

The following table indicates the sensitivity fo interest rate movements at the
reporting date, on the Group's profit or loss and shareholders' equity, The analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain

constani,

Group

I8 interest rates

LSS interest rates

Change in basis poinis!
Increase in interest rates
Dreceease in interest rates

2013

2012

Increase by 250 bps
Decrease by 100 bps

Increase by 200 bps
Decrease by 50 bps

Effecion

2013
Pooo

(649}
162

increase/decrease by 100 bps

Increase/decrease by 160 bps

Effect on Effect on Effecton
gquity profit gty
213 2612 2012
£000 $°000 060

{17,200} 15,008 15,494

502 (13,003} 16261



51

PROVEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
March 31,2013

7.

Financial risk management {cont’d)

(d) Market risk (cont’d):

(i)

(iv)

Interest rate risk {cont’d):

Company
2013 2012
USE interest rates Increase by 200 bps Increase/decrease by 100 bps
Diecrease by 50 bps
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit gquity profit equity
2013 2013 2012 2012
2060 $°000 $ 066 $000
Change in basis points:
Inerease in interest rates " {4,486) - {1,733)
Decrease in interest rates B 2,662 —= {1.3%4)

Price risi:

Equity price risk arises from equity securities held by the Group as part of its
investment portfolio. Management monitors the mix of debt and equity securities
in its investment portfolio based on market expectations. The primary goal of the
Group’s investment strategy is 1o maximise investment returns.

‘The Group’s exposure to price risk is represented by the total carrying value of
equity investments on the statement of financial position of $30,429,000 (2012:
$33,085,000) for the Group and $29,150,000 (2012: $33,037,000) for the
Company.

Sensitivity to equity price movemenis

A 10% increase in stock prices at March 31, 2613 would have increased other
comprehensive income by $3,043,000 (2012: $3,308,000) for the Group and
$2,915,000 (2012: $3,306,000) for the Company; an equal change in the opposite
direction would have decreased profit by an equal but opposite amount,
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27. Tinancial risk management {cont’d)

(e)

Capital management:

‘The Group's objectives when managing capital, as it applies to the regulated subsidiary,
are as follows:

(i)  To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial Services Commission
{(“the Commission™);

(it} To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

(iii) To maintain a strong capital base fo support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the Group's
management, employing fechniques based on the guidelines developed by the
Commission. The required information is filed with the Commission on a monthiy basis.

The Commnission requires each securities dealer to:

(i)  Hold the level of the regulatory capital at no less than 50% of Tier 1 Capital; and

(i} Maintzin a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets at or above
10%.

The subsidiary's regulatory capital is managed by its compliance officer and is divided
into two tiers;

() Tier | capital: issued and fully paid-up capital in the form of ordinary shares,
retained earnings and reserves; and

(iiy Tier 2 capital: redeemable cumulative preference shares,

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of stipulated weights applied to the risk-
based assets and other risk exposures as determined by the Commission.

The tabie below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the
Company’s subsidiary, which are in compliance with the requirements of the
Commission for the year under review!

Group Group
2313 2012
£000 $7000
Tier 1 capital:
Ordinary shares 718 779
Retained earnings and reserves 8.469 8,561
Total qualifying tier 1 capital 9,248 $.340

Tier 2 capital;

Redeernabie preference shares, being total qualifying

tier 2 capital 390
‘Fotal regulatory capital D230
Fotal risk-weighted assets 52416
Asgtual ratio of regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets 18.56%
Reguired ratio of regulatory capital to risk-weighted assels 14,809
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28. Fair value

The classification of financial instruments at fair value can be determined by reference to
the source of inputs used to derive the fair value. The classification uses the following three-
level hierarchy:

fevel |

Included in the Level 1 category are financial assets and liabilities that are measured in
whole or in part by reference to published quotes in an active market. A financial instrument
is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry Group, pricing service or regulatory agency and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length
basis.

Level 2

Included in the Level 2 category are financial assets and liabilities that are measured using a
vaiuation technigue based on assumptions that are supported by prices from observable
current market transactions, and for which pricing is obtained via pricing services, but
where prices have not been determined in an active market, This includes financial assets
with fair values based on broker quotes, investments in private equity funds with fair values
obtained via fund managers and assets that are valued using a model whereby the majority
of assumnptions are market observable.

Level 3

Included in the Level 3 category are financial assets and Habilities that are measured using non-
market observable inputs. This means that fair values are determined in whole or in part using a
valuation technique {model) based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available
market data. The Company has no financial assets or liabilities in this category.

Group
2013
Level i Level 2 Level 3 Total
$7000 $:000 $°000 $'G60

Avaitable-for-sale
investrient securities - 108,578 - 108,578
Financial assets at {air value through

profit or oss {equity securities} 167 - . 167
2012
Level § Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $060 5000 000
Available-for-sale
investment seourities 1,432 102,019 - 103,451
Financial agsets at fair value through
profit or joss {equity securities} ig - - i8
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28,

29.

Fair value {cont’d)

Company
2013
Level ! Level 2 Level 3 Total
$000 $060 £000 $000
Avaitabie-for-sale
investment securities 243 85446 86,389
2012
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $°600 $000 $000
Available-for-sale
investment securitics 1,459 62,041 . 63,500

The following tables present the fair values of financial instruments for the Group which are
not reflected in the financial statements at their fair value:

2013
Carrying Fair
value value
$000 $90
Financial assets
Investment securities:
Loans and receivables 4,347 4,256
2012
Camrying Fair
value vaiue
$000 $700
Financial assety
Investment securities:
i.0ans and receivables 0,786 6,788

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities shown in the statement of
financial position approximate their carrying amounts.

Earnings per stock unit

Earning per stock unit (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the profit attributable to stockholders
of the parent, of $4,153,000 (2012: $3,294,000) by the number of ordinary stock units in issue
during the year, numbering 294,951,884 (2012: 294,951,884).
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30.  Distribution to eguity holders

Group and Company
2013 2012
$006 $10060

Distribution to ordinary shareholders at $0.89 (2012: §0.93)
per share

2,743

31,  Lease commitmenis

At the reporting date, there were operating lease rental commitments, payable as follows:

Groun and Company

2013 2012

$'000 $000
Within one year 36 43
Subsequent years ; - 42 78
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